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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just a minute as

          3  we get everybody assembled. Thank you. Sorry that I

          4  was delayed. Everyone is on pins and needles, terror

          5  alerts, people are very concerned. Something took

          6  place in my district this morning that demanded my

          7  personal attention, and thanks, all, for being

          8  patient and waiting for me. I guess we all live two

          9  lives in the City Council, one here in City Hall and

         10  then back in the district. These days there's a lot

         11  going on in the district.

         12                 Good morning. I'm Council Member Jim

         13  Gennaro, Chair of the New York City Council

         14  Committee on Environmental Protection, and I'd like

         15  to welcome you to this hearing.

         16                 Today the Committee on Environmental

         17  Protection will hear testimony on Intro. No. 30.

         18                 The Committee members will also vote

         19  on proposed Intro. 123-A, which seeks to protect New

         20  York City's receiving order by increasing civil

         21  penalties for water pollution, drainage and sewer

         22  control violations.

         23                 We won't hear any testimony on this

         24  because you already heard the bill twice. We just

         25  recently held a hearing on this on January 30th,
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          2  2003.

          3                 So, when we have a quorum we'll just

          4  do that little order of business and get that out of

          5  the way.

          6                 Both construction of many new

          7  generating power plants within New York City has

          8  promoted both local and Citywide environmental

          9  concerns.

         10                 Primarily the concerns stem from the

         11  fact that many of the applicants seeking to run the

         12  proposed plants will continue to operate older and

         13  less efficient, less environmentally sound plants in

         14  tandem with newer, more efficient, less polluting

         15  plants.

         16                 In addition, questions have been

         17  raised as to what the cumulative impact of emissions

         18  from the clustering of plants might be.

         19                 The concerns surround the amount of

         20  harmful emissions that new power plants would emit,

         21  in particular the impact of emissions such as C02,

         22  carbon dioxide, which is responsible for such

         23  environmental hazards as global warming.

         24                 Intro. No. 30 speaks to this issue.

         25  The disturbing prospect of global warming, due to
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          2  the greenhouse effect, has garnered ever-increasing

          3  attention over the last decade.

          4                 The 20th century's ten warmest years

          5  all occurred in the last 15 years of the century,

          6  with 1998 having been the warmest year on record.

          7                 The emission of heat-trapping

          8  greenhouse gases, including carbon dioxide, is one

          9  of the leading causes of global warming. C02

         10  accounts for about 81 percent of greenhouse gases

         11  released in the US.

         12                 The purpose of Intro. No. 30 is to

         13  encourage owners of the current generating

         14  facilities, as well as newcomers to the New York

         15  City power industry, to maximize efficiency by

         16  incorporating technological advances in energy

         17  production that increase generation but do not

         18  require an increase in fossil fuel consumption, and,

         19  therefore, do not increase C02 emissions. The end

         20  results will be a cleaner, healthier environment for

         21  the City's citizens, while the same time being the

         22  City's energy needs.

         23                 Intro. 30 will ensure that the new

         24  market place for power will not commit the cost of

         25  public health, air, land and water quality.

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 Now, before we vote on proposed

          3  Intro. 123-A, I want to state that this bill will,

          4  getting back to 123-A, will help enforce legal

          5  measures vital to protecting the quality of the

          6  City's water bodies and will give the City more

          7  flexibility to do so. And then we talk about other

          8  items here that have to do with Intro. 123-A, but

          9  we're already heard so much on this bill, and I'd

         10  like to just proceed with the matter of Intro.

         11  Number 30, and we're going to be calling our first

         12  witness, Richard Miller, but not before I recognize

         13  the presence of Council Member Koppell from the

         14  Bronx, Council Member Peter Vallone from Queens, the

         15  prime sponsor of Intro. No. 30, along with myself

         16  and some other members, and Council Member Bill

         17  DeBlasio from Brooklyn.

         18                 I have a suspicion that Council

         19  Member Vallone is going to want to make a statement

         20  on Intro. 30 before we proceed. So, without further

         21  ado, I would like to give you Peter Vallone, Jr.,

         22  the Prime Sponsor of Intro. No. 30.

         23                 Council Member Vallone.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chair.

                                                            8

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 First of all, let me thank you for

          3  having this hearing. It's a little bit overdue but

          4  better late than never. I know that we've all been

          5  busy on events concerned with 9/11 for a period of

          6  time.

          7                 This is one of the reasons I ran for

          8  office, this issue. The first bill I put in when I

          9  was elected Council member, was a bill that was

         10  previously introduced by the former Speaker and did

         11  get held up by 9/11 actually, so that's why it was

         12  the first bill that I put in, and that's how

         13  important it is to me.

         14                 I used to represent a group called

         15  CHOCE, who I believe will be testifying today, the

         16  Coalition of Helping to Organize a Cleaner

         17  Environment, and who is very much involved in this,

         18  and as some of you know, over the last week or so

         19  I've been detailing the way the state has failed the

         20  City, and one of the ways, which I haven't

         21  mentioned, which I'm mentioning today, is in

         22  protecting us against pollution, especially the

         23  western Queens area, which I represent, that area

         24  produces 60 percent of the power for the entire City

         25  of New York right now, and since in the last year
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          2  two plans have been approved, there are three more

          3  that are seeking approval for that one little area.

          4                 So, the state has not acted to help

          5  us, the federal government has not acted to help us,

          6  it's time we need to act to help ourselves, and

          7  that's why this bill has been introduced, and that's

          8  why I'm glad we have a chairman such as Jim Gennaro

          9  and that he's having this hearing and I look forward

         10  to the testimony.

         11                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         13  you, Mr. Vallone.

         14                 And we're joined by my friend Council

         15  Member Margarita Lopez, a valued member of this

         16  Committee.

         17                 Okay, before we proceed with the

         18  first witness on issue number 130, we have the

         19  administrative matter of taking the vote on Intro.

         20  123-A, and, so, we have a quorum, I'd like to ask

         21  the clerk to call the roll on Intro. 123-A.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gennaro.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vallone.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of five in

          9  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         10  abstentions, the item is adopted.

         11                 Council members, please sign the

         12  Committee report. Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, we'll hold

         14  the record open for other members of the Committee

         15  as they come in. I know two of our members have to

         16  leave just briefly to take care of some items, but

         17  they promised to return.

         18                 So, we'll call our first witness,

         19  Richard Miller of the Economic Development

         20  Corporation, and Mark Lanagan of New York City DEP.

         21                 Mark, are you joining us? Why don't

         22  you sit up here with us.

         23                 Okay, thank you very much, Mr.

         24  Miller, Mr. Lanagan, for joining us today. As is our

         25  custom here in the Committee, we put our witnesses
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          2  under oath. You've been through it before. I'm going

          3  to ask the Counsel to the Committee, Donna

          4  DeCostanzo, to give the oath.

          5                 While I'm doing that, I just want to

          6  recognize Donna DeCostanzo and the Policy Analyst,

          7  Richard Colon, for all the work that they've done to

          8  get us ready for this hearing and for the work they

          9  always provide to this Committee. So, with that

         10  said, I'll ask Donna to give you the oath and then

         11  you can proceed. If you could just state your name

         12  for the record and proceed with your testimony.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         15  right hand.

         16                 In the testimony that you are about

         17  to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth,

         18  the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         19                 MR. MILLER: I do.

         20                 MR. LANAGAN: I do.

         21                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Happy

         23  Valentines Day to you. I'll say that to all the

         24  witnesses today. We're supposed to love each other,

         25  right, or whatever, and everyone is on pins and
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          2  needles, everyone is nervous, and all this, maybe we

          3  should pay a special focus on this Valentines Day to

          4  what's important.

          5                 So, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Miller.

          6  Proceed.

          7                 MR. MILLER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 Good morning, Chairman Gennaro and

          9  members of the Committee. For the record, I am

         10  Richard V. Miller, Senior Vice President for Energy

         11  at the New York City Economic Development

         12  Corporation, and the City's Energy Policy

         13  Coordinator.

         14                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         15  testify on the proposed law governing the emission

         16  of carbon dioxide by in-city electric generating

         17  facilities.

         18                 The Administration is eager to

         19  collaborate with the Council, with New York State

         20  and with other states in the region, on how best to

         21  maintain or improve the environmental performance of

         22  power generators in the deregulated energy market in

         23  which we now operate.

         24                 In today's energy market demand

         25  continues to increase and it may be two to four
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          2  years before permanent new supplies have received

          3  permits and are brought on line.

          4                 During the interim, older and more

          5  polluting generators will continue to operate.

          6                 Even after the newer plants are

          7  built, it is not yet clear whether all of the owners

          8  of the older power plants will upgrade their plants

          9  in response to competitive forces.

         10                 Powerplant owners already have some

         11  economic incentive to upgrade all their generators,

         12  because they tend to be less fuel efficient and

         13  therefore produce power at a higher variable cost

         14  than a more efficient facility.

         15                 The premise of Introduction No. 30 is

         16  that adding a municipal carbon dioxide tax to the

         17  cost of relatively, to the cost of operating

         18  relatively less efficient generating equipment, will

         19  encourage owners to upgrade their facilities more

         20  quickly, so that they will produce less carbon

         21  dioxide, as well as less of the pollution associated

         22  with fossil fuel combustion.

         23                 As you know, carbon dioxide itself is

         24  not a pollutant and has not been directly implicated

         25  in adverse human health effects.
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          2                 It is not currently subject to any

          3  federal New York State limitations or regulations

          4  such as those that govern the emission of Clean Air

          5  Act criteria pollutants or other recognized

          6  hazardous air pollutants.

          7                 It should be noted that much or some

          8  of this powerplant upgrading is already taking

          9  place. The New York Power Authority has pledged that

         10  it will close its existing Poletti plant no later

         11  than 2010, and possibly by 2008. Soon after it is

         12  completed its new modern efficient 500 megawatt

         13  plant.

         14                 I'll just for the record here note

         15  the participation of the Natural Resources Defense

         16  Council in helping to achieve that deal and obtain

         17  the closure of that plant.

         18                 Similarly, the replacement of Con

         19  Edison's waterside plant with the repowered 14th

         20  Street facility in 2004 will have a beneficial

         21  effect in reducing the volume of air emissions while

         22  simultaneously increasing electric generation

         23  capacity in the City.

         24                 KeySpan also implemented measures to

         25  reduce emissions as part of its proposed upgrade of
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          2  its Ravenswoods complex and has agreed to limit the

          3  operation of the most polluting generating

          4  components of its complex which are the peaker

          5  generators that are run only on hot days.

          6                 Finally, the reliant project in

          7  Astoria proposes to entirely replace older

          8  generation with new and significantly cleaner

          9  generation.

         10                 Next, it is important to point out

         11  that New York City as a whole emits substantially

         12  less than its per capita share of greenhouse gases

         13  and air pollution than compared to the nation at

         14  large.

         15                 This is true in part because the City

         16  has no coal-fired powerplants which contributes the

         17  largest amount of air pollution from powerplants.

         18                 The City also enjoys the status as

         19  perhaps the most energy efficient urban area in the

         20  United States, because a large number of us use

         21  electric means of transportation instead of more

         22  energy-efficient automobiles, and also because our

         23  residential per capita electric consumption is

         24  approximately half of the national average.

         25                 While carbon dioxide emissions are
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          2  expected to increase over the next several years,

          3  the City's share of that total should decrease as a

          4  number of its powerplants are modernized while

          5  others have retired completely.

          6                 In addition, recent studies have

          7  shown that a significant portion of the total air

          8  pollution load in the City is from airborne

          9  transportation from other regions.

         10                 This fact argues for a regional or

         11  national solution to the air pollution problem, and

         12  suggests that an attempt to address it in New York

         13  City alone would not be truly effective.

         14                 For example, the impact of older

         15  highly polluting powerplants upwind of New York

         16  City, which were grandfathered of provisions under

         17  the Clean Air Act, demonstrates that air pollution

         18  and carbon dioxide do not recognize borders.

         19                 Moreover, while the proposed law

         20  focuses solely on electric-generating units, it

         21  could also be noted that the largest source of

         22  atmospheric emissions of carbon dioxide and other

         23  pollutants in the City is the effective motor

         24  vehicles, cars, trucks and buses.

         25                 In addition, the State has recently
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          2  estimated that by 2010, vehicular carbon dioxide

          3  emissions will rise twice as fast as those from

          4  powerplants.

          5                 Given that the City is already an

          6  efficient energy consumer, and that the issue we are

          7  dealing with goes well beyond the City borders,

          8  there must be an assurance that the benefits of this

          9  law outweigh the costs that it would impose on City

         10  consumers, a law that unduly increased the City's

         11  electric rates already among the highest in the

         12  country, would harm the City's economy and

         13  ultimately the environment, if the result were

         14  people and businesses moving out of the City where

         15  energy is not consumed as efficiently.

         16                 Indeed for those of us who are

         17  concerned about what is referred to as the sprawl

         18  issue, any measure that could raise the City's

         19  electric costs should be carefully studied to

         20  determine whether the benefit justifies the cost.

         21                 Quotingly, while we share the

         22  concerns of the proposed law it sponsors, the

         23  Administration believes that more study is needed

         24  before a measure such as this is enacted.

         25                 For example, the law's baseline years
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          2  of 1997 through '99 were a period in which natural

          3  gas, the cleanest burning fossil fuel, sold at

          4  particularly low prices.

          5                 Gas prices are much higher today and

          6  are forecasted to remain higher. Accordingly, the

          7  use of that particular reference period would hurt

          8  consumers, if powerplant operators were compelled by

          9  the law to burn natural gas instead of fuel oil,

         10  even if gas prices have spiked.

         11                 There are other technical issues,

         12  some of which affect the reliability of the New York

         13  City electric system, which the Administration would

         14  be willing to discuss.

         15                 In sum, the Administration fully

         16  supports the concept of creating some type of

         17  incentive to encourage the most efficient generation

         18  of electricity.

         19                 Assuming that an economic and

         20  environmental impact analysis shows that the

         21  municipal carbon dioxide tax proposed in the

         22  legislation will lead to reduced emissions and

         23  improved air quality, without impairing reliability

         24  and causing economic harm to City ratepayers, we can

         25  all agree that Intro. No. 30 could make a difference
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          2  to New Yorkers.

          3                 While that analysis is underway,

          4  active consideration of this legislation sends a

          5  message to our colleagues in the legislative and

          6  executive branches of New York State government.

          7  Messages that New York City wants to work with the

          8  state and other state governments in the northeast

          9  to put in place a regional system of emission-based

         10  performance standards that will reduce the adverse

         11  public health and environmental impacts of

         12  electricity generation in a cost effective way,

         13  thereby improving air quality in the entire region.

         14                 It is extremely unlikely that even a

         15  municipality as large as New York City can improve

         16  regional air quality by itself.

         17                 Nevertheless, achieving that

         18  improvement remains a goal that the administration

         19  shares with the sponsors.

         20                 Thank you, and open for questions.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         22  you, Mr. Miller. I just made some notes to your

         23  statement as I was going through.  I'd just like the

         24  opportunity to take you up on a couple of things.

         25                 You indicated that the Administration
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          2  fully supports the concept of creating some type of

          3  incentive to encourage the most efficient generation

          4  of electricity. That's taken right from your

          5  statement. And that assuming that an environmental

          6  impact analysis shows that the carbon dioxide tax

          7  will lead to reduced emissions and improve air

          8  quality without impairing reliability, we could all

          9  agree that Intro. No. 30 could make a difference to

         10  New Yorkers.

         11                 I guess what I'm asking you to do or

         12  to speak to is that, if you don't precisely like

         13  what we have in this bill, what we propose, we

         14  worked hard on and we made a real effort here, you

         15  know, how can we make Intro. No. 30 into what you

         16  believe could, as you say encourage the most

         17  efficient generation of electricity and make a

         18  difference for New Yorkers.

         19                 So, what's your concept on what we

         20  should do, if not Intro. 30?

         21                 MR. MILLER: Number one, like I said,

         22  the bill has been improved, I think one of the

         23  original questions that the Administration did raise

         24  concerning the bill was the use of a single year,

         25  and as a result the Council did move to using a
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          2  three-year period.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          4                 MR. MILLER: However, the three-year

          5  period, I'm not sure exactly when it was adopted.

          6  The forecast for natural product gas prices has

          7  really changed radically since the time I think that

          8  this bill was first being considered. We're seeing

          9  natural gas prices now that I would say are in the

         10  range of three to four times what we have seen in

         11  the period of 1997 to 1999, and the forecasts are

         12  not for large reductions in the price at this time.

         13  I mean there still could be a significant drilling

         14  response and prices could be reduced.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         16                 MR. MILLER: But I think the first

         17  concern is that even though you did move to a

         18  three-year period, that may not be the most

         19  appropriate period.

         20                 Second of all, the one other

         21  technical issue that I would raise today is the

         22  issue that I know that certain generators in New

         23  York City are required to burn oil instead of

         24  natural gas when the demand in New York City goes

         25  above a certain amount.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          3                 MR. MILLER: For reliability reasons

          4  to make sure that those generators will keep

          5  running.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          7                 MR. MILLER: We haven't yet fully

          8  taken account of that factor, and given the rise in

          9  natural gas prices and there may be a couple of

         10  other technical issues, and like I said, we're more

         11  than willing to meet with the Committee and

         12  Committee staff to discuss those, but those are the

         13  ones that come to mind immediately.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It seems that

         15  I'm hearing there is support within the

         16  Administration for creating a concept of an

         17  incentive and by definition that would be something

         18  that we would do here in the City, not calling upon

         19  the state at large or the country or the national

         20  community or whatever, because you site in your

         21  statement a lot of things that are beyond our

         22  control.

         23                 I mean, we have the power to do only

         24  what we can do here in New York City, so this is our

         25  playing field this is where we have to operate, and
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          2  to the extent that there is something out there that

          3  we can do, which could -- and now that we've gotten

          4  the recognition from the Administration that we

          5  could or should do something, I mean we would like

          6  to figure out what to do and we'd like your help in

          7  trying to achieve that.

          8                 So, we've already moved to the three

          9  year basis, but you know, that that we have the

         10  Administration so-to-speak onboard with the concept

         11  of that there is something that could be done, we

         12  would, you know, certainly seek your assistance in

         13  getting to whatever would make sense for all of us

         14  so that we can create this incentive, because quite

         15  frankly, Council Member Vallone and others, are very

         16  interested in seeing us take a leadership role here

         17  in New York City and creating that kind of incentive

         18  that I guess could have been worked into

         19  deregulation and whatever but we didn't control that

         20  either, and we are what we are and, so, we want to

         21  get that Holy Grail of having the best

         22  electric-generating system here in New York City

         23  that's not onerous on people, but gives us the

         24  insurance that these old Pre-Clean Air Act plants

         25  will not continue to belch what they belch, and if
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          2  we could get to that goal then that would be a good

          3  thing certainly.

          4                 Let me just make one or two other

          5  comments on your statement before I open it to

          6  others who have questions.

          7                 MR. MILLER: I'll just repeat that

          8  we're more than willing to work with you and your

          9  staff.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         11  you. Thank you.

         12                 MR. MILLER: And we support the

         13  concept.

         14                 The only thing I just would add is,

         15  given the concern also would impact on consumers.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I was actually

         17  just getting to that.

         18                 You indicated in your statement that

         19  there must be an assurance that benefits to the City

         20  -- see, you think I'm not listening to your

         21  statement. I've got it right here. I'm on it. Must

         22  be some assurance that the benefits to the City

         23  outweigh the cost that it will impose on City

         24  consumers, and a law that unduly increase the City's

         25  rates.
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          2                 Is that a way of you saying that you

          3  believe that this law would unduly increase the

          4  City's electric rates? Is that like a nice way of

          5  saying it? Because you can say it. Go ahead.

          6                 MR. MILLER: Well, I will admit to

          7  you, Mr. Chairman, that I have not yet done a

          8  precise economic analysis of the impact of this law.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, that means

         10  to say that you don't know that it would -- but it

         11  makes it look like that's what you're saying here.

         12  What are you saying?

         13                 MR. MILLER: I think what I'm saying

         14  is that even in the absence of a precise economic

         15  analysis, the use of the 1997 through 1999 reference

         16  period, a time where natural gases were extremely

         17  low makes me suspect that the final use of that

         18  period in the law could result in an undue impact on

         19  New York.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. But I

         21  just want to get that your statement, "a law that

         22  unduly increased the City's electric rates," can be

         23  interpreted by people in the audience, people who

         24  hear your testimony, as you stating that Intro. 30

         25  as currently devised would indeed unduly increase
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          2  the City's electric rates. And I think you wanted to

          3  like intimate that but not say it. And, so, to the

          4  extent that you want to come and make statements

          5  that this or any other piece of legislation would

          6  cause undue economic burdens on people, should that

          7  be economic analysis to kind of back it up? You know

          8  what I'm saying?

          9                 So, you're not really saying that

         10  Intro. 30 would unduly increase the City's electric

         11  rates. You think it might, but you don't know for

         12  sure?

         13                 MR. MILLER: No.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         15                 MR. MILLER: But I do think that a

         16  more precise economic analysis should be performed

         17  before we would move forward with this legislation.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Would you be

         19  interested in helping us do that?

         20                 MR. MILLER: Yes, we would be

         21  interested in providing assistance on that.

         22                 My understanding is that this law

         23  would require a SEQRA analysis and that is one of

         24  the issues that would be looked at.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Has the
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          2  Administration worked with other jurisdictions on

          3  reducing C02 emissions, and is the Administration

          4  working to encourage the reduction of C02 emissions

          5  from powerplants on a state level? Or is this

          6  something that the Administration has some interest

          7  in, or is taking an active role?

          8                 MR. MILLER: I would say with respect

          9  to power plant siting, number one, our vigorous

         10  advocacy requiring powerplant developers to use

         11  cumulative air impact analysis that DEP has

         12  developed that is a more strict analysis than

         13  required by the State and the federal government is

         14  one example of how the Administration has questioned

         15  particular, to make sure that there are no adverse

         16  local impacts; and, number one, that making sure

         17  that the developers are also mitigating emissions to

         18  maximum extent feasible.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         20  you.

         21                 I want to recognize Council Member

         22  Serrano from the Bronx. This is my Bronx wing over

         23  here, and, so, I'm going to come back on a second

         24  round, but I want to open the questioning to the

         25  prime sponsor of Intro. 30, Council Member Vallone.
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          2  Peter.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair.

          5                 I also was paying attention to

          6  testimony and I thank you, obviously you're not

          7  opposing what we're doing. I believe you stated it

          8  needs more study and that's why we're here, and

          9  that's why we'd like your advice, as the Chairman

         10  said. But you also state that it's not clear yet

         11  whether New York State on its own should act, or

         12  whether New York City alone would be truly

         13  effective.

         14                 You may or may not be right, but one

         15  of the things we've learned in our short year or so

         16  in the City Council is we can't wait for the state

         17  to take action or the federal government, but more

         18  importantly we can't wait for the state to do

         19  anything, we need to lead here in the City, and they

         20  usually follow. And that's why we're here today, to

         21  show them what needs to be done, and if they don't

         22  take action and it doesn't appear they will in the

         23  near future, we will here on the City level, and it

         24  won't be effective, it won't be as effective as it

         25  should be, but eventually they usually follow us
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          2  when we do the right thing here. And that's why

          3  we're here, we can't wait for the state to take

          4  action.

          5                 You also said here, and it should be

          6  noted that much of the powerplant upgrading is

          7  taking place and you recite the Power Authority

          8  pledging to close its power plant, the Poletti

          9  Plant, by 2008, after we complete this new efficient

         10  500 megawatt plant.

         11                 I assume you're aware of this, but

         12  I'm going to let you know anyway, just in case

         13  you're not, that did not come about because of the

         14  fact that they wanted to do the right thing and

         15  closed the dirty plant down when they were opening

         16  up a new one.

         17                 I used to represent a group called

         18  CHOCE, which is here to testify today, and I dealt

         19  with them for years to try to close down their 830

         20  megawatt plant at that site, in exchange for them

         21  opening up their 500 megawatt one.

         22                 They refused to. They refused to even

         23  talk to us about it. You know, we said to them, they

         24  said they're not going to operate the older one,

         25  when we put the newer one in which is what everybody

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  says, they'll just operate it at 300 megawatts. And

          3  we said, you know what, if you need the 500 new one

          4  and the 300 from the old one, just put a whole new

          5  800 one in, put a bigger one in there than you want.

          6  We'll approve that, as long as you get rid of the

          7  old filthy one. They could care less. They didn't

          8  talk to us about it.

          9                 The reason they finally did it is

         10  because CHOCE sued, NRDC here sued, and because it

         11  was a gubernatorial election coming up. So

         12  eventually they finally agreed to close the plant.

         13                 So, it shows that incentives work.

         14  Whatever the incentive is, whether it's political,

         15  whether it's a lawsuit, whether it's financial

         16  incentive work, because the State will not do it on

         17  its own.

         18                 I've had much better dealings with

         19  the private companies, but the state will not

         20  upgrade on its own. They do need incentives, and

         21  that's another reason you're here.

         22                 I assume you're aware of that, but

         23  possibly you weren't.

         24                 MR. MILLER: Yes. In fact, Council

         25  member, if I may apologize and correct my earlier
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          2  statement, where I acknowledged NRDC's role, I would

          3  also like to acknowledge CHOCE's role in that, which

          4  I failed to do at the time.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you

          6  very much. I will accept that on behalf of CHOCE,

          7  even though I no longer represent them, and I don't

          8  know if they're in the room yet, but I believe

          9  they're testifying later.

         10                 You mentioned a few times that the

         11  baseline years were a problem that you had.

         12                 As far as I know there's no reason we

         13  need to use those three years as a baseline, so

         14  would the three other years, more recent to '99,

         15  2000, 2001, solve that concern you had?

         16                 MR. MILLER: As I stated earlier, in

         17  the absence of a precise economic analysis, I can't

         18  state for the record at this time what would be the

         19  best years to use, but we are willing to work with

         20  the Committee and it's staff to help make that

         21  determination.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: That would go

         23  a long way to rectifying that problem, though, about

         24  those three years not resulting in a fair baseline

         25  number.
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          2                 Do you have a number? Have you done

          3  an analysis as to what the baseline number would be

          4  if we used those three years?

          5                 MR. MILLER: No. I stated earlier I

          6  suspect, given how low natural gas prices were in

          7  those years, that an economic analysis would

          8  probably show that those are not the best years to

          9  use, but I have not done a detailed economic

         10  analysis yet.

         11                 I'll acknowledge my staff, since my

         12  staff is the ones that would actually have to do an

         13  economic analysis.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Can we expect

         15  an economic analysis to be done in the near future?

         16                 It's part of this bill, obviously,

         17  and we need to know these numbers.

         18                 MR. MILLER: As I stated earlier, my

         19  understanding is that this bill does require a

         20  SEQRA, and the obligation to do that SEQRA analysis

         21  and the extent to which there will be assistance

         22  provided by the Administration is something that I'm

         23  willing to discuss with you.

         24                 I'm not sure, I can't commit yet on

         25  behalf of my organization that we will entirely
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          2  perform that analysis on behalf of the Council given

          3  the scarce economic resources situation that we all

          4  face.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: No one

          6  understands that situation better than we do. There

          7  are some priorities that we have to have, and mine

          8  are public safety and the environment.

          9                 Right now what type of monitoring

         10  does your agency do on carbon dioxide emissions here

         11  in the City?

         12                 MR. MILLER: You mean my particular

         13  agency?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Or DEP

         15  sitting next to you.

         16                 MR. LANAGAN: Well, to my knowledge,

         17  the City doesn't monitor carbon dioxide emissions in

         18  the City.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So part of

         20  this bill would require monitoring carbon dioxide

         21  levels and it does specify your agency as the agency

         22  which would be in charge of this. What's your

         23  position on that?

         24                 MR. LANGAN: Well, it's the same as

         25  Rich's. We're happy to work with the Council on
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          2  identifying the potential cost and benefits from the

          3  carbon penalty created by the bill.

          4                 The bill prescribes that you create a

          5  carbon penalty based on an inventory of emissions

          6  and establishing an average carbon dioxide emission

          7  per megawatt hour, and you know, we discussed what

          8  would be the baseline to use -- what would be the

          9  baseline years that we would use in establishing

         10  that.

         11                 I mean, the commitment that Rich has

         12  made on behalf of the Administration is to work with

         13  you further on analyzing whether the framework and

         14  the penalties established in the bill are in the

         15  best interest of the City.

         16                 Figuring into that analysis has to be

         17  the cost of the administrative framework we would

         18  have to establish to keep track of the carbon

         19  dioxide emissions from the regulated universe.

         20  Whether that number is big or little, I couldn't

         21  tell you. It will be a number. There will be costs

         22  the DEP will have to incur in monitoring that.

         23                 There is also revenue generated by

         24  the bill, too. And just to restate, we don't have a

         25  reason to urge our bosses or you to support -- or we
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          2  haven't established the benefits that this bill

          3  would create. We haven't precisely established the

          4  cost that this bill would create. So we can't tell

          5  our bosses or you that the benefits outweigh the

          6  costs.

          7                 It's a very attractive proposal to

          8  discourage inefficient energy generation in the

          9  City, and that's why we're happy that you

         10  reintroduced the bill and gave us an opportunity to

         11  speak to it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Maybe I have

         13  to amend what I said before. The City doesn't wait

         14  for the state, perhaps on occasion the City Council

         15  doesn't wait for the state, for the Mayoral side, we

         16  need these figures. You need to testify in favor or

         17  against this bill. Eventually at this point we're

         18  working together, we understand that, but when will

         19  we have these figures? When will you be able to make

         20  a determination?

         21                 MR. LANAGAN: Sorry, I can't answer

         22  that, Mr. Vallone.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Well, you

         24  then may be forced to make a determination without

         25  proper figures, and that's not the way the City, the

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  people of the City deserve to be represented. So, we

          3  would encourage you to start working on that because

          4  we are serious about this bill. We will be voting on

          5  it eventually, and we'll need to have those figures.

          6                 We'll have our own, but we need to

          7  know your position, because we do take what you have

          8  to say seriously, and we are concerned with your

          9  opinion.

         10                 MR. LANAGAN: We'd be happy to meet

         11  with the Council staff and other stakeholders.

         12                 There are probably people in the room

         13  that have a lot to add in terms of the analysis that

         14  would help us decide what's in the best interest of

         15  the City, and we look forward to working with your

         16  staff to more precisely establish what the best

         17  thing to do is.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I'll have

         19  some things further, but I'll yield for now.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Vallone.

         22                 You know what? We'll just take an

         23  opportunity, while we have the record open, we have

         24  Council Member Serrano, so I'll call upon the clerk

         25  to ask for Councilman Serrano's vote on Intro 123-A.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

          3  Serrano.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Aye.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you, Council Member Serrano.

          7                 I recognize Council Member Koppell.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chairman.

         10                 I'm a little bit confused.

         11                 Mr. Miller, you state the energy

         12  policy of the City; is that correct?

         13                 MR. MILLER: That is correct, Council

         14  Member.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay. I think

         16  we need some clarity.

         17                 I think my colleague, Mr. Vallone

         18  suggested this, but let me hone in on it a little

         19  bit more.

         20                 I look with interest at the last page

         21  of your statement. You might want to look at it with

         22  me. And in there you say, in sum the Administration

         23  fully supports the concept of creating some type of

         24  incentive to encourage the most efficient generation

         25  of electricity.
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          2                 And then it says at the last

          3  statement, if an analysis shows that a municipal tax

          4  proposal would lead to reduced emissions and

          5  improved air quality, we can all agree that Intro.

          6  No. 30 could make a difference to New Yorkers.

          7                 So, that sounds to me like what

          8  you're saying in this paragraph is we have to do an

          9  analysis to make sure that it's an effective measure

         10  and that it will not cause economic calm, I guess

         11  that would be an analysis of what effect it have on

         12  price. And then it would be a good idea after we do

         13  that analysis, right?

         14                 MR. MILLER: That is correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: That's what

         16  you're saying.

         17                 So, that's good. And I think

         18  Councilman Vallone indicated as the sponsor that he

         19  encouraged the City to do this analysis so we could

         20  come to that conclusion. And that's all well and

         21  good, and it would be nice if the statement ended

         22  there, but what confuses me is the next paragraph,

         23  because you then say the message is that New York

         24  City wants to work with the State and other

         25  governments in the northeast to put in place a
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          2  regional system of emissions-based performance

          3  standards. And then it said that it is extremely

          4  unlikely that even a municipality as large as New

          5  York City can improve regional air quality by

          6  itself, and then you say nevertheless achieving

          7  improvement remains a goal.

          8                 So, it sounds to me that the last

          9  paragraph is suggesting that the City shouldn't do

         10  something like Intro. 30, because that's not a

         11  regional approach which is the one that the City

         12  wants to take.

         13                 So, I would just like you to clarify

         14  for me, because I'm confused. Should I take the

         15  second to last paragraph as the policy of the City,

         16  which you state you expressed or the last paragraph?

         17                 MR. MILLER: I think the way to view

         18  the way the last two paragraphs work together is

         19  that my view is that a regional or national approach

         20  is an approach that is much less likely to result in

         21  economic harm for New York City and its ratepayers.

         22  And, so, the last paragraph is a reference back to

         23  the prior paragraph speaking to the issue of

         24  economic harm.

         25                 Now, what I'd like to say, what I'm
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          2  trying to say at the same time, is I think that the

          3  Council does deserve congratulations for continuing

          4  to raise this issue. Because it is possible that we

          5  will find in the end, in terms of doing an economic

          6  analysis and looking more closely at some of the

          7  reliability rules in New York City, this may not be

          8  the best vehicle, because the analysis has not been

          9  concluded for improving air quality in New York

         10  City.

         11                 But I think even if the analysis

         12  turns out that way, the Council still deserves

         13  credit for raising this issue and having the debate,

         14  and looking into whether we can actually act on our

         15  own.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But you want

         17  to act on our own, you want us to act on our own, as

         18  long as it doesn't cause economic harm.

         19                 MR. MILLER: Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: You want us

         21  to act on our own.

         22                 MR. MILLER: Right. But for me --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, no, no.

         24  Don't just gloss over it. You want us to act on our

         25  own, right?
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          2                 MR. MILLER: Well, since I represent

          3  New York City ratepayers and not just purely

          4  environmental interests, I think there is that big

          5  if for me, which is that, yes, I would like to see

          6  us act alone to improve the environment, if I could

          7  be convinced that this would not have any harm for

          8  New York City ratepayers, and then, you know, I do

          9  also believe that harm to New York City ratepayers

         10  could ultimately lead to harm to the environment if

         11  it means that further increases in electric rates

         12  would lead to people or businesses moving out of the

         13  City.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, whether

         15  that would be environmentally harmful or not we

         16  could debate. It might have other harms, I don't

         17  know about the environment. The environment was

         18  probably a lot better when nobody lived here or only

         19  the Indians. But leave that aside.

         20                 I think there is an ambiguity in your

         21  attitude, and I don't want to belabor it anymore

         22  because I think I've demonstrated it.

         23                 I think that I would like to join,

         24  Mr. Chairman, with Mr. Vallone, in saying that I

         25  think that the City should act on its own, for a lot
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          2  of different reasons, including the fact that it's a

          3  very large producer of pollutants, even though we

          4  may be more efficient than other places.

          5                 Secondly, we can be a spur to other

          6  places acting. I would point out that last year

          7  probably the most significant thing, or one of the

          8  most significant things we did was to pass some

          9  legislation dealing with predatory lending. It's a

         10  little far afield from this, but because we acted,

         11  the state was kind of forced to act, and now maybe

         12  even the federal government is going to act, in part

         13  because we got everybody so nervous acting on our

         14  own, that we forced them to act in an attempt to

         15  sort of preclude us.

         16                 I firmly believe that we should act

         17  on our own, the time to start is now and certainly

         18  waiting on the federal government to act, given the

         19  attitude of the present administration, I think we'd

         20  be waiting a long time for that to happen.

         21                 Therefore, I will say to you that I

         22  will urge you to complete your analysis, so that we

         23  can act with maximum information and act prudently

         24  and intelligently, but not to assume that the

         25  Council will not act, if all the City does is to

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  pursue some regional approach or state approach.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

          4  Council Member Koppell.

          5                 MR. MILLER: I just want to point out

          6  again that there are other things that we can do,

          7  and obviously one that hasn't been spoken about

          8  today, because it's not part of this bill, but it's

          9  working together more on the issue of energy

         10  efficiency in the City, because to the extent that

         11  we reduce our consumption of energy, we're of course

         12  reducing C02 emissions also.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         14  you.

         15                 And as a matter of fact, Speaker

         16  Miller has a whole energy efficiency program which

         17  I'm proud to be a part of, and supportive of, and

         18  we're doing some legislative things in that area as

         19  well, but let me just see if I can sum up where we

         20  are so far with your testimony, vis-a-vis us.

         21                 Certainly we want to be protective of

         22  the ratepayers, and, so, we think what we heard that

         23  there is an interest in having the City do something

         24  on its own in such a way that it helps the

         25  environment and does not unduly impact the
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          2  ratepayers of New York City, and there is a way to

          3  do that, if we do the appropriate analysis and if we

          4  work together. So, I think that's good because you

          5  could have come in here and just said there is no

          6  goal line that we can get to that's not going to

          7  injure the economy, and injure the ratepayers and

          8  therefore ultimately injure that which we seek to

          9  protect, which is the environment.

         10                 That was not your statement, so I'm

         11  comforted and encouraged by where I think we are

         12  right now, but I would urge you to work with the

         13  members of this Committee, particularly Council

         14  Member Vallone, to see if we can get that analysis

         15  that would lead us towards a strategy that could,

         16  you know, finally send a message back to pre-Clean

         17  Air Act plans and all their soot and all their

         18  nonsense should have been spoken to in 1970, should

         19  have been spoken to during deregulation, and it

         20  wasn't, but, you know, here we are.

         21                 And, so, to the extent that New York

         22  City can do something about this problem and do it

         23  in such a way where we protect your ratepayers as

         24  well as the environment, I hear that there's a way

         25  to do that and I suggest that we get it done, and
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          2  with that, I'd like to turn it over again to Council

          3  Member Vallone for some follow-up questions.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you.

          5  I'll be brief.

          6                 I was remiss in complimenting you on

          7  the job you have done on behalf of New York City,

          8  the entire City has done with regard to the

          9  environment. I know you've been helping us in

         10  Albany, which is a change. I know we took a big loss

         11  yesterday, in front of the independent system

         12  operator. They approved the change by one percent,

         13  which will, we believe decrease the incentive to

         14  repower, and you on the right side of that, and

         15  you're helping us out with that, and hopefully we

         16  will be able to appeal that decision. So, I need to

         17  commend you.

         18                 You just stated a few seconds ago

         19  there's a lot more we can do. That's what we're here

         20  for. I know it's maybe a bit off topic, but is there

         21  something else while you're here that the City

         22  Council can do to assist you in your job relating to

         23  decreasing the amounts of pollution.

         24                 MR. MILLER: I think the most

         25  important thing, and the Administration, to my
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          2  understanding, is more than willing to work together

          3  on this issue, is the energy efficiency especially

          4  during the summertime, and working to help to

          5  promote those programs that encourage energy

          6  efficiency in the City. The most important one I'd

          7  just like to mention at this point in time is the

          8  Con Edison Load Control Program for air

          9  conditioners, given that air conditioners are the

         10  most important segment of the large summertime

         11  increase in electricity, and I've actually signed up

         12  and used the Con Edison Load Control Program for,

         13  it's for central air conditioning only, it's not for

         14  window units. There are other programs.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I was

         16  wondering why I hadn't taken advantage of this, I

         17  was a little worried.

         18                 MR. MILLER: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Can you

         20  explain what that is?

         21                 MR. MILLER: It is very important to

         22  get the word out to anyone who has a central air

         23  conditioner that there is a thermostat that you can

         24  control via the Internet, and that is one of the

         25  things that I am interested in working on for this
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          2  summer.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great. Thank you

          4  very much. Thank you very much. We look forward to

          5  your testimony. We look forward to your future

          6  cooperation, and we'll be in touch. Thank you.

          7                 MR. MILLER: Thank you for the

          8  opportunity.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet.

         10                 MR. LANAGAN: One last thing. Thank

         11  you, on behalf of Commissioner Ward, for your

         12  interest in 123-A.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, thank you.

         14  Sure. I didn't want to take up too much Committee

         15  time with 123-A, but I'm very happy that we are

         16  going to work with the Administration on behalf of

         17  those that would pollute our sewer system and cause

         18  untold damage to power plants -- to sewage plants,

         19  and 123 is a great example of cooperation between us

         20  and the Administration, and I can't wait for the

         21  bill signing.

         22                 Are you going to be there?

         23                 MR. LANAGAN: Sure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thanks

         25  very much.
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          2                 Our next witness, Mr. Gupta from the

          3  Natural Resources Defense Council; and a

          4  representative of CHOCE, if she's here, Donna

          5  Digilio. Am I saying that right? Digilio.

          6                 And the next witness will be, after

          7  Mr. Gupta, will be Liam Baker and John Reese from

          8  O'Ryan.

          9                 Ashok, welcome.

         10                 MR. GUPTA: It's an honor to be here.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: My pleasure.

         12  Thanks for coming.

         13                 Donna DeCostanzo will administer the

         14  oath, and then if you can state your name for the

         15  record and proceed with your testimony.

         16                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         17  right hands.

         18                 In the testimony that you're about to

         19  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         20  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         21                 MR. GUPTA: I do.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         23                 Do you have a written statement?

         24                 MR. GUPTA: No, I do not.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Before you
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          2  start, I just want to thank you for your help with

          3  Intro. 30. I believe I was present some years back

          4  with Peter Vallone, Jr., and Senior, where we had a

          5  conversation about the type of bill which we might

          6  be able to do which could help out a lot and I want

          7  to thank you for your great work to date, and

          8  anything that you can share with us today, that will

          9  help us move this further.

         10                 So, thank you very much. I appreciate

         11  you being here today.

         12                 MR. GUPTA: Thank you very much. It's

         13  a pleasure to be here. Good morning, and happy

         14  Valentines Day to all.

         15                 My name is Ashok Gupta, and I work

         16  with the Natural Resources Defense Counsel. I've

         17  been with NRDC about 12 years and I'm the director

         18  of their Air and Energy Program, and NRDC is a

         19  national environmental group with over half a

         20  million members headquartered here in New York City

         21  and we've been in New York City for an entire 30

         22  plus years.

         23                 Thank you for holding this hearing.

         24  This is a very important subject for many of us, and

         25  I certainly appreciate the leadership of Council
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          2  Member Vallone, Jr., and yourself on this issue for

          3  many years before you were even here on the Council.

          4  So, we look forward to working here with you in

          5  making this bill happen and passing this bill, and

          6  certainly working with the Administration and Rich

          7  Miller also.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Before I was

          9  here, Jim was Counsel to this Committee, so he's

         10  been working on this for a long, long time. I don't

         11  know if that has been pointed out yet.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Ashok, if I

         13  could, I know that the representative of CHOCE is in

         14  the room, Donna Digilio.

         15                 Would you like to come up and present

         16  testimony with Mr. Gupta?

         17                 MS. DIGILIO: Sorry.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure, quite all

         19  right.

         20                 I was late myself.

         21                 You know what, Donna, if we could

         22  we'll just place you under oath. We're doing that

         23  for all the witnesses, so we'll just take a moment.

         24  The Counsel to the Committee will administer the

         25  oath to you so that we could get your testimony.
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          3  right hand.

          4                 In the testimony that you're about to

          5  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          6  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          7                 MS. DIGILIO: Absolutely.

          8                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 Sorry, Ashok. Please continue.

         12                 MR. GUPTA: Sure.

         13                 Here to testify on behalf of Intro.

         14  30, strongly support the legislation, think it

         15  properly balances the City's need for energy

         16  reliability, economics, in terms of cost to

         17  consumers, and protecting the environment, and I

         18  think it's important to balance those issues, and I

         19  think by allowing energy capacity to increase, as

         20  this bill does, but also allowing for trading of

         21  credits and other measures to keep the costs down,

         22  and also encouraging more efficient power plants to

         23  actually be built, it is helping on the economic

         24  side, and certainly on the environmental side it's

         25  causing emissions of certainly C02 but also all of
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          2  the other pollutants that are collateral to C02 to

          3  also decline.

          4                 So, I think the big picture here is,

          5  you know, meeting our energy needs, doing it cost

          6  effectively, improving the efficiency of existing

          7  generations, allowing a lot of flexibility in terms

          8  of compliance and improving the environment at the

          9  same time.

         10                 It's not an easy thing to do, but I

         11  think we, working with you have moved in that

         12  direction with this legislation and that's why we

         13  support it.

         14                 On the issue leading, clearly the

         15  City Council and New York City can lead and must

         16  lead on this issue, it did so many years ago in the

         17  Clean Air Act. New York City over 30 years ago lead

         18  on Clean Air issues before the federal government

         19  had a Clean Air Act.

         20                 The State and federal government will

         21  follow on this issue. There are already discussions

         22  at the State and federal level on climate issue.

         23  It's not going to be many years but they will be

         24  right behind a city and I think it's important for

         25  the City to lead.

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 On the economic costs, a couple of

          3  points. I mean, yes, natural gas prices are

          4  increasing, but they're increasing regardless of

          5  whether we pass this bill or not. The purpose of

          6  this bill in effect is to improve the efficiency of

          7  generation to reduce emissions. If you improve the

          8  efficiency of generation to reduce emissions, you

          9  reduce the cost of electricity because you don't

         10  waste fat fuel and you don't burn more fuel. The

         11  point is to burn less fuel, and reduce emissions and

         12  save consumers money.

         13                 So, in this case you're actually, by

         14  encouraging efficient generation, saving consumers

         15  money and lowering emissions, it's important to keep

         16  that in mind.

         17                 And in terms of complying with this

         18  bill, C02 emission data is reported by generators to

         19  EPA. There's a lot to build on and it's not in terms

         20  of reporting and what DEP will need to do, yet there

         21  will be some cost associated with it but it's not as

         22  if we're starting from zero in terms of reporting of

         23  these emissions and having that data available, so

         24  there is a lot of information that's available.

         25                 The bill works, as you've heard
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          2  already, in terms of having a baseline of a

          3  three-year period, a different baseline could be

          4  collected, but I think we have a reasonable one,

          5  over multiple years, but there's flexibility, of

          6  course, what the baseline should be, but the idea

          7  was clearly meeting some baseline and setting an

          8  emission rate that you would be measured against,

          9  and over time that rate would decline. We're not

         10  capping the total tons of emissions here, so you

         11  allow for economic growth, so you can have more

         12  generation, but the rate, so you have to, the

         13  kilowatt hour or tons per megawatt hour that you're

         14  reducing over time and allow for economic growth at

         15  the same time, and by allowing trading, you're

         16  allowing a lot of flexibility in terms of how to

         17  achieve that rate at the lowest cost, and, again,

         18  there will be winners and losers. There will be

         19  people who will be better than the average and worse

         20  than the average. Those that are worse than the

         21  average will have to buy allowances from those that

         22  are better than the average, or they can invest in

         23  energy efficiency in homes and offices, because the

         24  bill allows for that, or renewables.

         25                 There's a lot of flexibility in terms
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          2  of how to achieve it at the lowest cost possible,

          3  but it shouldn't assume that everybody is going to

          4  be the loser in this type of situation, because

          5  you're establishing an average rate.

          6                 And lots of other details here to

          7  cover in the Q and A but I think it's time to

          8  provide the national leadership, it's time to move

          9  this forward. I think that there's some tweaks that

         10  might be made. Further analysis could be done

         11  quickly, it doesn't have to take a lot of time in

         12  terms of answering the questions. So, I think that

         13  those have been in the Council for a couple of years

         14  now, I think it's time to move it out of Committee

         15  and quickly.

         16                 So, we look forward to working with

         17  you on this bill, and Donna will make some comments

         18  on behalf of CHOCE, who we have worked with, of

         19  course, closely on this and many issues for numerous

         20  years now.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. We'll

         22  just hear Donna's statement and then we'll ask you

         23  questions together.

         24                 Thank you very much for being here

         25  today.
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          2                 MS. DIGILIO: CHOCE, the coalition

          3  helping to organize a cleaner environment is a

          4  grassroots coalition of residential and civic

          5  associations, representing over 400,000 residents in

          6  Queens.

          7                 The formation of our organization was

          8  precipitated by the onslaught of several new power

          9  plants and major plant extensions proposed in and

         10  around Queens, significantly elevating the risk of

         11  greater air pollution burdens on what is already one

         12  of the most heavily polluted areas in the country.

         13                 Our original mission was that no new

         14  power plants be built unless their operation is

         15  coupled with the elimination of existing pollutant

         16  generating plants and/or installation of other

         17  equipment that results in the reduction of current

         18  overall pollution levels.

         19                 We work to educate communities

         20  regarding proposed power plant construction and

         21  pollution issues, especially those communities with

         22  older plants.

         23                 We tried to build a city-wide

         24  coalition of civic housing and other public

         25  interests to support pollution-reducing strategies
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          2  for the City and State, and we advocate for

          3  area-wide pollution reduction policies and programs

          4  for the local state and federal agencies.

          5                 Over the last three years we have

          6  worked closely with the NRDC, and we support them in

          7  this bill. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          9  you, both, very much. Let me just sort of lob some

         10  questions out there.

         11                 Mr. Gupta, I just want to refer back

         12  to Mr. Miller's statement. As you heard there is

         13  some level of embrace of the Council asking if it

         14  could be done in such a way so as to protect

         15  consumers and not have rate shock and ultimately

         16  lead to a situation where we could hurt the

         17  consumers in any environment. And the thing

         18  ultimately that was standing in the way of where we

         19  are now with this bill and wherever that ideal place

         20  is is an analysis that would show that.

         21                 Do you think we have to do the

         22  analysis, or what kind of analysis in your

         23  estimation would have to be done to conclusively

         24  demonstrate that by proceeding we would definitely

         25  helping not only the economy, but the environment.
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          2                 Just speak to that, please.

          3                 MR. GUPTA: Also, I was also like you

          4  very much encouraged by Rich's testimony. I think he

          5  was saying that generally it was something the

          6  Administration could work with, so I think we look

          7  forward to further work with them on this issue.

          8                 I think specifically it comes down to

          9  time frame issues. The bill encourages and

         10  incentivises more efficient generation. By itself it

         11  may not be enough and the question is what other

         12  policies need to be put in place to encourage the

         13  investments in repowering and rebuilding older

         14  plants and building new ones, in order to have the

         15  improvements environmentally, and economically, I

         16  would argue.

         17                 So, I think if in the short term you

         18  can't get those investments made and people have to

         19  buy more expensive fuel, there is a short-term

         20  issue, the question is how do we get passed that

         21  short-term issue, and how big is that short-term

         22  cost?

         23                 There are other ways, and I think the

         24  public service commissioner is moving towards a

         25  long-term contract, as a way to encourage investment
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          2  in new generation and hopefully in repowering of

          3  older plants, and if we can couple this with good

          4  policies and long-term contracts, then we can get

          5  those investments made in the older plants, improve

          6  the efficiency of that generation, lower cost to

          7  consumers and protect the environment.

          8                 But there are other factors that play

          9  clearly and the issue is also, short-term and

         10  medium-term and what would this even, I would

         11  believe that this legislation would drive the desire

         12  to have more long-term contracts to force

         13  investments in new power plants to take place.

         14                 So, what you want the generators to

         15  do is to say we've got this issue here because of

         16  this bill. The way to get around this bill is to

         17  improve the efficiency of our power plants, and how

         18  are we going to make that investment? Long-term

         19  contracts are the solution. So it forces the

         20  generators to have to work with others for long-term

         21  contracts as a way to improve the efficiency. What

         22  you want to do is drive investment in the old

         23  technology and shut down some of those older plants

         24  or repower them by this approach.

         25                 I think you're creating the
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          2  incentive, the mechanism, that's going to cause the

          3  series of actions to take place, and I don't assume

          4  the only action is people are going to burn a more

          5  expensive fuel and that's it. You can make the worst

          6  case assumption about the reaction to this bill and

          7  say the cost might be high. I would say if that

          8  happened is a very near term issues, I think that's

          9  the type of discussion we need to have about how

         10  does this fit in with other things, and what will it

         11  result in.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         13                 MR. GUPTA: So, I look forward to

         14  further conversation with both the Committee and the

         15  Administration.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me just

         17  follow-up on that a little bit.

         18                 There is a current I guess landscape

         19  out there in New York City. You've got old plants,

         20  you have various entities, trying to put up new

         21  plants, you've got new powering, you've got a whole

         22  landscape going on out there, and I guess that there

         23  are actors that are out there who have chosen for

         24  their own economic purposes or whatever to pursue

         25  sort of like a repowering strategy and there are
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          2  others that I guess haven't adopted that. And, so,

          3  into this mix we sort of drop this piece of

          4  legislation, and is there a situation, you know, not

          5  many names but are there actors out there on the

          6  playing field that are going to be helped by this

          7  legislation, by the players out there, that are

          8  going to be hurt by it? You know the actors out

          9  there and you know what their plans are and what

         10  they're doing. Can like everybody work with this?

         11                 Is this something that I guess some

         12  of the players out there are going to have their own

         13  take on whether they like this or not. But what does

         14  this do to the while energy development milieu

         15  that's going on out there?

         16                 MR. GUPTA: There are clearly winners

         17  and losers and the question is when you pass a

         18  requirement like this, you force people to say,

         19  well, how am I going to comply, how can I do it at

         20  least cost, what else do I need to do to get there

         21  and still make money and make profit.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         23                 MR. GUPTA: And you will hear from

         24  some of these companies. I think certainly Veriat

         25  (phonetic) is ready to repower their older plant, a
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          2  very good thing, will help lower emissions. They

          3  should benefit, if they can get that repowering to

          4  take place, how much time will it take for them to

          5  do so, and whether they have the financing and a

          6  long-term contract to do so, will be the issues that

          7  they face.

          8                 So, you know, I think basically each

          9  company will look at this as something that they

         10  will have to then react to ask the question, how do

         11  we get there in the cheapest way possible, and you

         12  certainly in making new investments is the best way

         13  from economic and environmental perspective to get

         14  there, and the question is what are the barriers to

         15  making those investments and moving forward.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         17                 MR. GUPTA: And this bill will force

         18  that discussion to take place on terms of how to get

         19  those barriers to those investments, and that's what

         20  we want to do.

         21                 We want to enforce the decision about

         22  why hasn't investment taken place in the past, and

         23  how can we encourage that investment to take place

         24  in the future, and not assume that that investment

         25  can't happen.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. And

          3  whatever regulation has been passed historically, it

          4  has driven the type of investments that are needed

          5  at a much lower cost than everybody expects. So, the

          6  argument is always made with regulation that it's

          7  going to be too expensive.

          8                 So the technology exists, the

          9  know-how exists, it really is a trigger to having

         10  those investments made, and so what you're driving

         11  here is new investments, new technology, lower cost,

         12  less pollution, and, you know, you don't control

         13  that investment but you are causing the actors to

         14  have to bend or figure out how to get that money and

         15  how to make that investment happen, so it's in their

         16  interest to both comply with the law and make money.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Because

         18  I'm certainly not insensitive to the people that are

         19  out there making their decisions on investments and

         20  building plants, they're working according to the

         21  economic landscape that was set out by deregulation

         22  in the state and all that, and I guess some have

         23  opted to go in such a way such that this bill would

         24  make a lot of sense for them and others perhaps not.

         25                 MR. GUPTA: We're prepared to work
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          2  with all the companies in terms of what policies,

          3  both at state level and otherwise will help them

          4  make the investments they want to make and can make

          5  and are interested in making, in order to lower

          6  emissions.

          7                 So, I think it's really, you know, we

          8  work closely with Key Span and Reliant and others

          9  and we remain prepared to kind of create the

         10  environment that includes this legislation but other

         11  policies that really drive new technology in the

         12  City.

         13                 Historically we've basically not made

         14  the investments that we need to make and what we're

         15  trying to say, time has come to put some money into

         16  these old plants to really improve their performance

         17  from a fuel usage and environmental perspective.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I'm not

         19  adverse to doing legislation concomitant with some

         20  sort of resolution or resolutions that would call

         21  upon the State to enact certain policies or

         22  whatever. But overall you're sanguine on the

         23  prospects for all of the actors that are on the

         24  playing field to be able to adjust and to make money

         25  and provide power and live happily ever after.
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          2                 MR. GUPTA: Yes, the main thing that

          3  is needed at the state level is the issue of

          4  long-term contracts. It's like landlords who can't

          5  build without anchor tenants, basically a power

          6  plant that doesn't have contract for some portion of

          7  its supply isn't able to demonstrate to its lenders

          8  a revenue stream and therefore need a long-term

          9  contract for a portion of its power to be able to

         10  raise the money to make the investment.

         11                 So, that's the key issue, that we are

         12  working on with many generators, and I think it's

         13  something that the City Council with a resolution

         14  could weigh in on in terms of a way to encourage

         15  investment in new technology.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         17                 Council Member Vallone.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you.

         19                 Let me begin by commending both of

         20  you for the work that you've both done, you're

         21  organizations have done to help our environment.

         22                 I know being involved in CHOCE that

         23  everything that they did which was a lot of work,

         24  NRDC was right there to support them and give them

         25  the back-up they needed as a fledgling group.
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          2                 Thank both of you for coming down

          3  again today. Let me just begin with something right

          4  off the bat. Mr. Miller testified, as you know, that

          5  carbon dioxide itself is not a pollutant and has not

          6  been directly implicated in adverse human health

          7  affects; would you like to address that?

          8                 MR. GUPTA: It's definitely a

          9  pollutant, so that's a technical legal issue whether

         10  the Clean Air Act or EPA or somebody defines it as a

         11  pollutant or not, it's certainly a pollutant that

         12  causes, you know, warming of the atmosphere and

         13  therefore has huge consequences. So, from that

         14  issue, you know, we can quibble at what to call it,

         15  but we definitely believe it's a pollutant.

         16                 On the issue of adverse health

         17  impacts, it's not the same as obviously fine

         18  particulates and smog and other pollutants that have

         19  a direct health impact. It would over time, as

         20  temperature changes, cause health impacts to occur,

         21  so they're not the direct health impacts, but the

         22  adverse health impacts are longer term and global in

         23  nature, so Rich is correct on that point, that it's

         24  really, C02 is a national and global phenomenon that

         25  needs to be dealt with, if we're going to really

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  solve that problem. But, again, I've argued that on

          3  that issue leadership from the City would help move

          4  the State and the federal government in the right

          5  direction and help us solve the climate change

          6  problem.

          7                 So, by itself, it can't solve the

          8  problem, but it can through its leaderships. So, C02

          9  is a climate change issue, it's not a direct health

         10  consequence issue, but as we also know, as C02

         11  declines, other pollutants will decline too, and

         12  there's a direct correlation as you improve the

         13  efficiency --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Why is that?

         15                 MR. GUPTA: Because it's basically,

         16  we're talking about burning fuel, which is what

         17  generates all of these pollutants, and if you are

         18  reducing C02 by improving the efficiency of power

         19  plants, you are also, or burning gas instead of oil,

         20  you are also reducing all of the other pollutants at

         21  the same time.

         22                 So, this bill is specifically

         23  regulating C02 emissions and not the other

         24  pollutants, but there are, you know, a lot of

         25  important health benefits that accrue as a result of
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          2  regulating C02.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you for

          4  clarifying that. And it's a legal reason that we can

          5  only do what we can do as a City Legislature, and

          6  since no one has acted on C02, that leaves us the

          7  opportunity to act here as opposed to some of the

          8  other particulates you spoke about.

          9                 Like Jim we have, I share the

         10  concerns about some of the power companies that are

         11  here and we've worked with them prior to today on

         12  many occasions, and there are some that I have very

         13  good working relationships, like Mr. Baker, who will

         14  be testifying from Reliant and let me give you some

         15  of their concerns so that you can address them.

         16                 None of us want this to be something

         17  that they can't comply with, and will result in a

         18  tax on power companies which gets given over to the

         19  consumers and it's a source of revenue to the City.

         20  Maybe some people want that to be but we don't want

         21  that to be up here. So, they have said to us that

         22  this is not a standard they can comply with, unless

         23  they repower.

         24                 The existing facilities are not able

         25  to be tweaked, to get any more benefits out of them.
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          2  You can't put a catalytic converter on these things.

          3  And, so, therefore they can't comply.

          4                 So, I know you addressed that a

          5  little bit with Mr. Gennaro, but if you can talk

          6  about ways they can comply and maybe focus a little

          7  bit on the credits.

          8                 MR. GUPTA: Yes, I mean the near term,

          9  without investing and improving the efficiency in a

         10  generation, you're really talking about, you know,

         11  burning cleaner fuel, gas instead of oil, and then

         12  there's the issue of cost associated with that,

         13  otherwise the least cost option may be to invest in

         14  energy efficiency in the community, in terms of

         15  improving the energy usage in buildings or in the

         16  transportation sector, and that can be really,

         17  really inexpensive, and maybe the least cost option

         18  in the near term, in order to comply, if you're

         19  above the average.

         20                 I mean, again, not everybody is going

         21  to be above the average, in terms of their

         22  emissions. It depends on who is above the average.

         23  If you're above it, you're going to have to buy some

         24  offsets. If you can't make the investment to improve

         25  the efficiency fast enough in the generation. And,
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          2  again, I think when Reliant comes here, I think if

          3  the interest of everybody is to have everybody is to

          4  have that repowering take place as fast as possible,

          5  and there may be an opportunity to even, you know,

          6  in terms of when the date of this bill gets

          7  triggered, could be slightly adjusted, and we need

          8  to really work towards getting a long-term contract,

          9  which I think Reliant would welcome as a way to get

         10  that investment to happen quickly.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Let me stop

         12  you for a second because I have some questions.

         13                 Number one, before Reliant repowers,

         14  they've got an old power plant there, so you're then

         15  in essence agreeing that the only thing they can do

         16  to comply would be to burn cleaner fuel. There's

         17  nothing they can do to that power plant. So, I just

         18  wanted to make sure that you're in agreement or not,

         19  because we get much of that information from

         20  environmental advocates.

         21                 MR. GUPTA: There may be some tweaks

         22  to improve the efficiency without full repowering,

         23  and that's a question for engineers that one could

         24  look at and say has every bit of efficiency been

         25  tweaked out at this current plan? But other than
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          2  that you really are talking about a field switching

          3  opportunity at the plant as a way to reduce the

          4  emissions.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Which

          6  obviously -- well, I shouldn't say obviously. Which

          7  would result in increased costs?

          8                 MR. GUPTA: It could. I mean, again,

          9  it's something that needs to be analyzed to look at,

         10  you know, oil versus gas. But don't forget the

         11  benefit side, I mean basically what we're saying is,

         12  yes, basically people are choosing to burn oil

         13  because it's cheaper than gas, and because of that

         14  we're going to get more pollution, and we're asking

         15  the question, is it better for them to burn a little

         16  bit more gas, and how do you do the analysis? Burn a

         17  little bit more gas, cost a little bit more, but you

         18  get less pollution.

         19                 So, the fuel switching is a direct

         20  issue of, what are the benefits and what are the

         21  costs.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Which we

         23  don't have yet from the City.

         24                 MR. GUPTA: Yes, but I'm saying

         25  benefits are going to be health benefits, and it's
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          2  hard to monotize those, too, and say, you know, we

          3  can look at the cost of burning gas and say it's

          4  going to cost X pennies more for a consumer, but how

          5  do you measure the cost of the health benefit to

          6  say, well, it may well be worth it for more natural

          7  gas to be burned.

          8                 So, that's a different analysis that

          9  needs to be looked at in terms -- that's a value

         10  judgment almost, it's like how much is it worth to

         11  save some lives? But generally to answer your

         12  question, yes, short term you're talking about field

         13  switching or buying credits for offsetting those

         14  emissions some other way by lowering demand on the

         15  grid through energy efficiency, or some other clean

         16  energy technologies.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: And would

         18  this provide an incentive for repowering or is that

         19  too far of a leap?

         20                 MR. GUPTA: If people can repower and

         21  improve the efficiency of their plant, they will end

         22  up being far below the average and be able to sell

         23  their credits to others, so it provides a marginal,

         24  incremental incentive. It probably won't be enough

         25  by itself to cause people to go and repower, you

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  know, there will be other things that will be

          3  needed, but it certainly is directionally correct in

          4  terms of the incentive it provides.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: You've

          6  mentioned long-term contracts a few times, and can

          7  you just flesh out the system that exists, how it,

          8  what exists now with the contracts, what needs to be

          9  done and what you would like to see in a resolution

         10  from the City Council?

         11                 MR. GUPTA: Basically over the last

         12  few years, two years ago we saw these applications

         13  for new power plants and everybody was coming in

         14  with an Article 10 application. Over the last couple

         15  of years, because of California, the Enron debacle,

         16  the stock market and lots of other reasons,

         17  financing has basically dried up in terms of

         18  building new generation.

         19                 So, you can't build a merchant plant,

         20  or build a plant totally on spec and say, you know,

         21  give us the money, we'll build a plant and people

         22  will buy the power, and so I think the State has

         23  understood this problem, and what happened in

         24  mid-December was Con Edison went out with a contract

         25  for 500 megawatts, a power over a ten-year period,
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          2  as a way to get new generation built.

          3                 So, a contract of certain length can

          4  be taken to the bank and say, somebody will buy our

          5  power at this price for ten years, you should lend

          6  us the money to build it.

          7                 So, basically it's a part of a

          8  financing package for new power plant companies or

          9  repowering projects to say if we have somebody

         10  agreeing to buy a portion of our output, if a

         11  landlord has a portion of the building leased, you

         12  can get financing.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: How is that

         14  done? How would a ten-year contract be done?

         15                 MR. GUPTA: Basically in this case Con

         16  Edison primarily, it could be done, I mean in a way

         17  the City of New York could do it, if it wasn't

         18  buying from the Power Authority or even a large

         19  number of private interests could get together and

         20  agree to do a long-term contract. Most likely we're

         21  talking about a scenario where just most customers

         22  are still buying from Con Edison, even though they

         23  have choice, residential and small business

         24  customers still buy from Con Edison. Con Edison goes

         25  out there and buys on our behalf every day.
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          2                 Con Edison could be buying some of

          3  that power on our behalf through long-term

          4  contracts. That's what they've done with their 500

          5  megawatt RFP. So they said we will buy some of our

          6  power under a long-term contract.

          7                 So, basically it becomes a policy of

          8  the Public Service Commission to encourage Con

          9  Edison as the service provider to buy power under

         10  long-term contracts, not just under stock market or

         11  day ahead or two or three-year contracts, but longer

         12  in order to encourage financing to take place. And

         13  this is a good way to keep consumer prices down too,

         14  because there's a lot of risk of buying only in

         15  short-term markets on behalf of consumers. So, this

         16  goes to the consumer issue, if you have some

         17  long-term contracts out there, it will help as part

         18  of a portfolio approach, lower prices for consumers.

         19                 So, our view is Con Ed should have a

         20  portfolio of resources, some long-term, some

         21  short-term, some day ahead, some demand energy

         22  efficiency as part of a portfolio to manage the risk

         23  for consumers and deal with volatile gas prices and

         24  lots of other things.

         25                 So, long-term contracts is an
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          2  important issue of discussion in Albany, in

          3  legislation, to reauthorize article 10, and many

          4  other ways, and it's something that we can talk more

          5  about in terms of specifically how the City Council

          6  might weigh in.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          8                 Just one or two more questions before

          9  we move on to another witness.

         10                 Do you believe that the C02 emission

         11  credits allowed under the bill should be provided

         12  for past investments in energy efficiency and other

         13  strategies that reduce C02 emissions? Or only to

         14  such investments that occur after the effective date

         15  of Intro. No. 30.

         16                 I read that question.

         17                 MR. GUPTA: Only for future

         18  investments, not past.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         20                 How do you feel about an exemption

         21  for peaking electric-generating facilities? I guess

         22  some people believe that there should be an

         23  exemption for peaking facilities. Do you have a view

         24  on that?

         25                 MR. GUPTA: Generally opposed to it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          3                 MR. GUPTA: I'd like to hear more

          4  about why people think it should be done.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, no, I just

          6  wanted to get your answer on the record.

          7                 Now, there is legislation that is

          8  passed of this type in Suffolk, perhaps even Nassau

          9  County concerning C02, do you know what they've done

         10  out there?

         11                 MR. GUPTA: They basically took your

         12  lead and introduced the bill and actually passed it

         13  before you did, but they were taking the City's lead

         14  in doing that, and they have done that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So Suffolk has

         16  done it?

         17                 MR. GUPTA: Suffolk and Nassau.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Nassau is

         19  passed?

         20                 MR. GUPTA: That's my understanding.

         21                 I'll verify it, but that's my

         22  understanding.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I believe

         24  Council Member Vallone has another question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: One of the
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          2  things that will come up when you leave is possibly

          3  having an incentive-based system only without fines.

          4  That's something that the companies will recommend;

          5  what's your opinion on that?

          6                 MR. GUPTA: I'm willing to think about

          7  it.

          8                 I think the goal here isn't to

          9  penalize people. The goal is to get compliance. If

         10  the question is how do we best get compliance, so it

         11  doesn't need to be exorbitant or high and I'd like

         12  to figure out a way that some of that money, if it's

         13  collected, actually is used for improving

         14  environmental performance and, so, it's not revenue

         15  for the treasury, it's really used to improve the

         16  overall environmental performance of electricity

         17  generation.

         18                 But the question is, is there a

         19  better way to make sure that there's compliance.

         20  It's not intended as a way to punish people but find

         21  a way to maximize compliance.

         22                 So, I'm open to figuring out if there

         23  are better ways to get compliance.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you both very much. I appreciate your testimony.
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          2  Thanks so much for being here, thanks for your great

          3  work and your continued advocacy on behalf of

          4  cleaner air and more efficient energy generation

          5  system for the City of New York. I appreciate it

          6  very much. Thank you.

          7                 MR. GUPTA: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The next

          9  witness, the next witnesses will be Liam Baker and

         10  John Reese from Reliant.

         11                 But before we take your testimony, I

         12  need a 60-second cough syrup break. I'll just run

         13  down and get some cough syrup. So, we'll take like a

         14  75-second recess. I'll be right back, as you folks

         15  get ready.

         16                 I'd like to also bring to people's

         17  attention that we've got written testimony from the

         18  New York State Public Service Commission. They have

         19  submitted written testimony.

         20                 Mr. William Flynn, the Chairman has

         21  presented written testimony. Anyone who is

         22  interested in getting a copy of the written

         23  statement here can ask staff of the Committee, and

         24  it will be provided.

         25                 I'll see you in 75 seconds.
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          2                 Okay, I'm now operating under the

          3  influence of Dayquil. This Vicks thing. I have a

          4  whole Alpine sensation thing going on in my

          5  respiratory track.

          6                 Thank you. And I have tea with honey,

          7  for the record.

          8                 We also have written testimony from

          9  New York City Community Board 6 in Manhattan,

         10  written testimony. And we have testimony from the

         11  New York League of Conservation Voters.

         12                 Thank you, Mr. Baker and Mr. Reese

         13  for being with us here today. You're some of those

         14  prime movers on the energy front, and New York City

         15  out there doing it every day, and we certainly

         16  appreciate your presence here today and we value

         17  your comments.

         18                 We look forward to your perspectives

         19  on this bill and we thank you for your patience and

         20  for your good work with Council Member Vallone

         21  throughout the years, and I've been friends with Mr.

         22  Baker for awhile myself. So, thanks very much.

         23                 Donna will administer the oath and

         24  you can proceed with your good testimony.

         25                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that
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          2  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

          3  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

          4  truth?

          5                 MR. BAKER: I do.

          6                 MR. REESE: I do.

          7                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thanks very

          9  much. Please identify yourself for the record and

         10  proceed with your testimony.

         11                 MR. BAKER: Liam Baker.

         12                 MR. REESE: John Reese.

         13                 MR. BAKER: On behalf of Reliant

         14  Energy, I thank Chairman James Gennaro and the

         15  Council Members of the Committee on Environmental

         16  Protection for the opportunity to speak before you

         17  today.

         18                 On August 20th, 1999, Reliant Power

         19  Holdings, Inc., purchased the Astoria Generating

         20  Station, the Gowanus Gas Turbines and the Narrows

         21  Gas Turbines from Con Edison.

         22                 On February 19th, 2002, Reliant

         23  Resources, Inc., which does business under the

         24  Reliant Energy trade names purchased Orion Power

         25  Holdings, Inc., and thus became owner of the three

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  plants affected by the proposed legislation.

          3                 The plants are located in Astoria,

          4  Queens and Sunset Park, Brooklyn, and are capable of

          5  supplying approximately 20 percent of electricity

          6  needed by New York City on a peak demand day.

          7                 Orion Energy is committed to

          8  operating, maintaining and upgrading these plants to

          9  meet New York City's growing demand for electricity

         10  in an environmentally sound manner.

         11                 Reliant Energy operates its power

         12  plants guided by a straightforward corporate

         13  philosophy. Our corporate mission is to create a

         14  portfolio of premier generating facilities that

         15  provide competitively priced wholesale electricity,

         16  while demonstrating our environmental stewardship to

         17  the communities in which we reside.

         18                 Satisfying New York City's growing

         19  electricity demand presents unique challenges to the

         20  electric power industry, lawmakers and local

         21  communities.

         22                 While few can dispute the growth in

         23  New York's electric power demand and the need for

         24  more production capacity, care must be exercised

         25  that this growth is not accompanied by unacceptable
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          2  impacts to New York's air, water or land resources.

          3                 The proposed New York City

          4  legislation, which is the subject of today's

          5  hearing, is an approach which the City seeks to

          6  encourage the electric power industry to improve

          7  power plant operating efficiency.

          8                 However, the proposed legislation in

          9  its present form poses problems for competitive

         10  suppliers in New York City.

         11                 While we are actively pursuing a

         12  permit for the repowering of the Astoria plant, we

         13  are concerned over the impact of this legislation.

         14                 First, this proposal will increase

         15  the cost of generating electricity and generator

         16  owners would have no recourse but to pass these

         17  costs through to the consumers.

         18                 Second, we believe that regulatory

         19  solutions do not send the proper signals to

         20  accomplish the goal and are particularly ill suited

         21  for such a small geographic area.

         22                 Rather, we encourage the Council to

         23  take an incentive-based approach towards reducing

         24  C02 emissions instead of the punitive approach of

         25  this legislation.
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          2                 Such an approach could provide access

          3  to low-cost financing for construction costs or

          4  preferential treatment for generators competing for

          5  long-term energy contracts.

          6                 Reliant Energy takes no position as

          7  to the authority of the New York City Council to

          8  enact the legislation.

          9                 Lastly, within the scope of the

         10  legislative proposal, we respectfully question the

         11  Council's decision to completely exempt "any

         12  electric generating unit when the rates for sale of

         13  electricity produced by such electric generating

         14  unit is subject to the jurisdiction of the New York

         15  public service commission."

         16                 To the best of our knowledge, this

         17  exemption would apply only to the generating units

         18  of the Consolidated Edison Company of New York, Inc.

         19                 These exempted units are some of the

         20  oldest and least efficient operating units in New

         21  York City.

         22                 Based on publicly available data from

         23  the United States Environmental Protection Agency,

         24  these exempted units contribute over 16 percent to

         25  the total carbon dioxide emissions in New York City.
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          2                 We respectfully submit that the

          3  Council's intent would be more completely realized

          4  if these units were treated no differently than

          5  other generators.

          6                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          7  address the Council on this matter, and I'd be happy

          8  to take your questions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Let

         10  me kind of take something from your statement and

         11  see if I can get a little more from you on it.

         12                 You indicated in the second page of

         13  your statement that the legislation in its present

         14  form poses problems for suppliers in New York City,

         15  and that will increase the cost of generating power,

         16  which would have to be passed on to the consumers.

         17  But you indicated that rather than do the punitive

         18  approach, we could have some kind of incentive-based

         19  approach and I'm wondering what form that might

         20  take, or what kind of recommendations you might have

         21  in that area to bring about the incentives.

         22                 I mean, I guess we're sort of looking

         23  at this as creating incentives, but, of course, it's

         24  certainly like a carrot stick approach I guess, and

         25  then so you're sort of holding it like we should
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          2  offer carrots, and how would we do that in such a

          3  way as to provide the kind of incentive that would

          4  make a real difference and not harm energy producers

          5  like yourself.

          6                 MR. REESE: I think we addressed a

          7  couple of them. One of the things is assisting new

          8  facilities or repowered facilities, particularly --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just go for it.

         10                 MR. REESE: Yes, right.

         11                 Looking at long-term contracts. I

         12  mean, there is incentives there that tying that

         13  perhaps to future City contracts in supply of energy

         14  would be one area.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is that

         16  something we could legislate, sort of talking could

         17  we do that?

         18                 MR. REESE: I would leave that for you

         19  to decide.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         21                 MR. REESE: Not being a lawyer, I'll

         22  dodge that question.

         23                 Another area could be on the

         24  beneficial tax treatment or projects that have come

         25  in and repowered. That would be the kind of thing we
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          2  would be looking at.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          4                 MR. REESE: As an additional

          5  incentive.

          6                 I think it's been addressed before.

          7  One of the real challenges right now in the

          8  electricity industry is in fact what happened in the

          9  financial markets relating to electric generation

         10  and the difficulty to get financing there.

         11                 So, what we don't want to see is

         12  something that's a penalty on one hand, where we're

         13  unable to secure what's the necessary financing to

         14  take the action that we're pursuing.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         16                 Why don't you just walk us through,

         17  let's just say, you know, we had hanker in to do

         18  this today, and we all just voted, sent this thing

         19  to the floor, and did this and this bill became a

         20  law next week, what would this do to you?

         21                 I'm very concerned about specifically

         22  -- and, again, the other power producers can speak

         23  for themselves but you folks have been involved in

         24  repowering and so on. So, this does what to you,

         25  very specifically? Pull no punches, hit us.
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          2                 MR. BAKER: We've had some time, and

          3  we did a detailed analysis of the affects.

          4                 Using the 1997, '98 and '99 baseline

          5  years, based on the publicly available data, and I

          6  would establish the baseline.

          7                 The Astoria-generating station would

          8  be in compliance with the baseline, as it stands

          9  today.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         11                 MR. BAKER: The Gowanus, Gas Turbines

         12  would not.

         13                 And, as you know, for every 100

         14  megawatts of new generation added, the baseline

         15  would decrease one percent.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         17                 MR. BAKER: We estimate that after the

         18  first 1,000 megawatts of generation is added in City

         19  so the first ten percent drop, we would be paying

         20  fines in excess of a million-six a year, without any

         21  ability to really do anything about that.

         22                 I mean, you can improve slightly your

         23  C02 performance if you burn more natural gas, but

         24  it's not a slam dunk.

         25                 I don't know the exact percentage but
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          2  it's probably somewhere around maybe a ten percent

          3  margin of benefit.

          4                 So, certainly we're going to be

          5  paying the fines. And we've been trying to get a

          6  permit to repower our plant, since December of 1999,

          7  and we still don't have the permit.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What's holding

          9  that up?

         10                 MR. BAKER: Well, right now there's

         11  still two interveners in the case and we're trying

         12  to come to settlement with them, and the State

         13  Public Service Commission has one issue that they

         14  may actually go to litigation with. It's beyond

         15  silly at this point.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's regarding

         17  Brooklyn, or Astoria?

         18                 MR. BAKER: This is for the Astoria,

         19  we're still waiting on the permit.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You should talk

         21  to your Councilman.

         22                 MR. BAKER: You want to know the

         23  parties involved? They're your two best friends.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We'll talk.

         25                 MR. BAKER: But it's just that in its
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          2  current form, we would be getting punished off the

          3  bat and here we are thinking we're trying to do the

          4  right thing, and it's really nothing --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          6                 MR. BAKER: I mean, these plants are

          7  anywhere from a 1952 commissioning date to a 1959

          8  commissioning date.

          9                 We've squeezed every last bit of

         10  efficiency out of these units we can.

         11                 MR. REESE: I'd like to add that we do

         12  burn natural gas at both Astoria and in the

         13  Turbines.

         14                 We converted a number of the turbines

         15  that were just oil only to be dual fuel, so that we

         16  can burn natural gas, and I've seen some

         17  improvements as a result of that.

         18                 One of the harsh realities right now

         19  is that natural gas is so much more expensive than

         20  oil.

         21                 And the second thing is, neither Rich

         22  Miller or Ashok alluded to, is that under a local

         23  reliability rule, whenever the load in New York City

         24  gets to 8,000 megawatts, we're required to burn oil,

         25  so that all the generation in the City isn't
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          2  dependent on natural gas for reliability purposes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          4                 MR. REESE: So that even with those

          5  changes there are some things we just couldn't

          6  change in the existing facilities.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, short term,

          8  we do this bill right now, you guys get socked for a

          9  million-six and fines.

         10                 MR. BAKER: And that's only going to

         11  go up each year, because each year the penalty

         12  increases by a dollar.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         14                 Can you just address how credits are

         15  involved in the million dollar fine, why can't that

         16  alleviate that burden?

         17                 MR. BAKER: The credits are a

         18  necessary part of any C02 legislation, and John is

         19  heavily involved in state efforts on C02.

         20                 The problem with a New York City, and

         21  a region the size of New York City, that the

         22  availability of credits is limited.

         23                 There's not many units in the City

         24  that would be far enough below the baseline to

         25  create sufficient credits to establish a really
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          2  rigorous trading market.

          3                 You'd need a larger region where

          4  you'd have more combined cycle units, units with

          5  better heat rates and thus could produce more C02

          6  credits.

          7                 So, that's the fundamental problem.

          8  You have an aging, you have an aged powerplant fleet

          9  in the City with few exceptions. There is some new

         10  generation coming on line, which would be able to

         11  create credits, but they're not on line yet.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What about

         13  credits within the community? Upgrading boiler

         14  systems, things like that?

         15                 MR. BAKER: That's certainly a

         16  possibility, it will all come down to, frankly, how

         17  much is it going to cost me to get that credit, and

         18  is it going to cost me about the same as a fine

         19  would?

         20                 And I'm just being direct, as always.

         21  That's one way. But it all comes down to can we do,

         22  can we structure the incentives, such as investing

         23  in PV or fuel cell or some other technology in the

         24  community, instruction incentives to make it really

         25  economical for me to want to do that, versus even
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          2  considering being in breech of the legislation, of

          3  the proposed rules.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's

          5  legislation as it's currently configured.

          6                 If we were to use a different

          7  baseline, if we were to kind of restructure the bill

          8  in such a way, would that make it better?

          9                 We're still looking to try to do

         10  something in the way it is now, you indicate would

         11  be some level of bad news for you, but how could we

         12  change it so that it would be better for you and

         13  other people who are out there trying to do the

         14  right thing?

         15                 MR. REESE: Without having to commit

         16  that I'd like it when it's done?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon?

         18                 MR. REESE: Without having to commit

         19  that I'd like it when it's done?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Sure.

         21  Help us out here. You're out there doing this every

         22  day, and you've got your spread sheets and slide

         23  rulers and computers and techno wizards and you're

         24  working within this milieu and everything and you

         25  understand it thoroughly well. I think you have a
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          2  good grasp of what you're trying to do, and, so, if

          3  you were confronted with a situation, okay, the

          4  Council wants to do something, and how can we -- you

          5  know, if you wanted to make this better for

          6  yourselves, what would you do?

          7                 MR. REESE: One thing just off the top

          8  is dealing with the reliability requirement of

          9  minimum oil burn. It's something you have to do.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What's that?

         11                 MR. REESE: The reliability

         12  requirement that requires us to burn oil at times.

         13  And finding a way to exempt that portion because

         14  that has to do with maintaining the City's

         15  infrastructure. We don't have a way around from

         16  that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         18                 MR. REESE: And that will affect a

         19  number of other people in the same situation as us.

         20                 I think the real challenge here is

         21  actually around the issue of those peaking units,

         22  and I was kind of surprised to hear somebody say

         23  exempt them and I'm not going to say that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         25                 MR. REESE: I just view it as a
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          2  challenge, because I'm not certain even the newest

          3  state-of-the-art peaking units that NYPA put in,

          4  whether they would comply.

          5                 And for the economics of the

          6  electricity system, you need those lower cost units

          7  that are available only 50 hours a year, 100 hours a

          8  year, 200 a year, when the City reaches right at the

          9  top. By their very nature and design they're less

         10  efficient.

         11                 And what happens is, those units, by

         12  penalizing them, you're adding to the cost of

         13  electricity at the moment when it's most expensive.

         14  Those units are the most expensive units when they

         15  were on, if they can't meet the standard under any

         16  scenario, they're always going to be bearing that

         17  fine.

         18                 And, so, it's going to add when the

         19  price was going to be $300, it was going to be $315.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         21                 MR. REESE: I just made that up.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         23                 MR. REESE: So that's the challenge

         24  I'm not quite sure how to get around.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.
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          2                 MR. REESE: The simple one is, you

          3  know, look at the oil burner that's required for

          4  reliability and exempt it, or work with that.

          5                 On the peakers, it's just a tougher

          6  question. I don't know how to answer that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          8                 Yes, certainly we want to get the

          9  benefit of your advice. And, you know, counsel, you

         10  folks are trying to work within the regulatory

         11  framework that's out there. That's when you and

         12  others are trying to deal with, and, you know, for

         13  us to go and put this other layer on there, that's

         14  certainly going to change things. We would like to,

         15  you know, Peter and myself would like to make a

         16  change for the better, and for us to, you know, we

         17  need the benefit of your input to try and do that.

         18                 Did you just say you were in favor of

         19  exempting peakers, or not?

         20                 MR. REESE: I don't think that's the

         21  answer, personally. I'm speaking personally now, not

         22  as Reliant Energy. I'm just not sure, given your

         23  objective whether that gets you there. If you're

         24  just hitting the baseload units, whether exempting

         25  the peakers, you know, reaches your objective.
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          2                 MR. BAKER: The one thing to keep in

          3  mind as far as peakers is that in the aggregate, and

          4  we can get the numbers, but in the aggregate. They

          5  don't contribute a very large percentage of the

          6  total C02 emissions in the City, since they run so

          7  infrequently as compared to the baseload units.

          8                 But, yet, since the baseline is on a

          9  per megawatt basis, they can never be in compliance,

         10  even though looking at the whole pie, they really

         11  have a very small slice of the contribution, but

         12  their punishment is going to be the same, for every

         13  megawatt hour they generate, they're going to get

         14  hit with that fine.

         15                 I mean, the intent is to reduce C02

         16  and that's a great intent, but GTs, the gas

         17  turbines, and I don't have the percentage, but they

         18  probably don't contribute anywhere near close to the

         19  intermediate or baseload units you have throughout

         20  the City, but yet the punishments are going to be

         21  largely the same.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: They

         23  actually, from what I've been told, won't be able to

         24  comply, the new NYPA units; do you have any idea why

         25  the newest technology wouldn't be able to comply
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          2  with it?

          3                 MR. BAKER: It's a fundamental of the

          4  gas turbine.

          5                 The gas turbine intrinsically is a

          6  very inefficient piece of machinery. It's a jet

          7  engine that produces electricity, and the reason

          8  it's so inefficient is because you don't reuse all

          9  the hot gases that pass out the stack, and that's

         10  what makes it so quick to start up and come on line.

         11                 If there were a combined cycle plan,

         12  like our repowering or the SCS or NYPA's expansion,

         13  you know, they capture those gases and they get

         14  reused and improve the operating efficiency. But

         15  until you do that, your operating efficiency is

         16  pretty pour. So, I would probably wager that the GTs

         17  wouldn't be in compliance.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. We

         19  appreciate that.

         20                 Also, the first part of your

         21  testimony, the Counsel to the Committee missed some

         22  of that. I'd just like you and the Counsel of the

         23  Committee to have a follow-up conversation. She

         24  didn't get the benefit of the earlier part of your

         25  testimony. And with that said, thank you very much
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          2  for coming. We appreciate your being here.

          3                 MR. BAKER: Nice to see you again.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure, okay.

          5                 MR. REESE: Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thanks.

          7                 Next witness, Mr. Robert Teetz,

          8  Director of Environmental Engineering and Compliance

          9  at KeySpan Energy.

         10                 To be followed, the next panel after

         11  that would be Mark Bramer, New York Climate Rescue;

         12  Jason Babbie, NYPIRG; Craig Wilson, American Lung

         13  Association.

         14                 And I want to put the American Lung

         15  Association on notice, I'm going to ask about my

         16  bronchitis. Maybe there's something they can do for

         17  that. So, get ready.

         18                 Mr. Teetz, thanks for being here.

         19  Counsel to Committee will put you under oath and

         20  then we'll ask you to give us your testimony.

         21                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         22  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

         23  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         24  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         25                 MR. TEETZ: Yes, I do.
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Teetz, appreciate your being here today, and if I

          5  could ask you, when you present your testimony, if

          6  you could speak right into the microphone, it would

          7  be great.

          8                 So you have a written statement?

          9                 MR. TEETZ: Yes. It's being handed out

         10  right now.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you.

         12                 MR. TEETZ: Good afternoon, Mr.

         13  Chairman, and members of the Committee. My name is

         14  Robert Teetz, I am Director of Environmental

         15  Engineering and Compliance at KeySpan.

         16                 I appreciate this opportunity to

         17  present constructive input into the process of

         18  addressing carbon dioxide emissions in New York

         19  City.

         20                 KeySpan is the largest Natural Gas

         21  Company in the northeast serving some two and a half

         22  million customers in New York City, Long Island and

         23  New England.

         24                 KeySpan has owned and operated

         25  electric generating facilities in New York State for
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          2  over 75 years, and presently owns more than 6,200

          3  megawatts of electric power generation on Long

          4  Island and in New York City.

          5                 We are the largest investor-owned

          6  electric generating company in the State of New

          7  York.

          8                 In New York City KeySpan owns and

          9  operates the Ravenswood and Far Rockaway Power

         10  Station.

         11                 And I would digress from my prepared

         12  testimony for just a moment and mention that we have

         13  under construction a 250 megawatt combined cycle

         14  facility in Ravenswood, which we've worked very

         15  closely with CHOCE and NRDC and gained their support

         16  for after considerable negotiation and we're pleased

         17  to have that support. That plant is a 100 percent

         18  merchant facility, we do not have a long-term

         19  contract on that facility. We are taking 100 percent

         20  of the risk on our own for the financial aspect, and

         21  we expect to have that unit on-line at the end of

         22  this year. It's about 50 percent complete in

         23  construction.

         24                 It will be the lowest C02 emitting

         25  generator in New York City for certain and most
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          2  likely the state, when it's completely constructed

          3  and comes on-line, so we're looking forward to that.

          4                 KeySpan recognizes the threat of

          5  global warming, and the devastating worldwide impact

          6  that rising sea levels and climatic changes could

          7  have.

          8                 Worldwide carbon dioxide emissions

          9  must be reduced. KeySpan has already made great

         10  strides in reducing C02 emissions.

         11                 Our present C02 emissions are 15

         12  percent below what they were in 1990. In contrast

         13  the electric industry as a whole has increased its

         14  C02 emissions by 26 percent over that same period.

         15                 We endorse the Kyoto accords and we

         16  believe that international efforts are required to

         17  stabilize carbon dioxide emissions effectively.

         18                 We strongly advocate federal

         19  legislation that would significantly reduce carbon

         20  dioxide emissions from all combustion sources.

         21                 In fact, KeySpan and a number of

         22  other progressive energy companies have actually

         23  drafted federal legislation that has been introduced

         24  in the United States that would significantly reduce

         25  carbon dioxide from powerplants on a nationwide
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          2  basis.

          3                 Having said that, and agreeing with

          4  you, that C02 emissions from power plants and other

          5  combustion sources must be curtailed, we strongly

          6  believe that addressing this issue with local

          7  legislation is problematic and could possibly even

          8  be counterproductive.

          9                 New York City generating units are

         10  already far cleaner than those just outside New York

         11  City, and certainly in the rest of the country.

         12                 KeySpan's New York City power plants

         13  burn primarily natural gas and small amounts of low

         14  sulfur fuel oil.

         15                 Consequently, our plants already emit

         16  C02 levels 30 percent below the national average.

         17                 The bill's target to reduce what are

         18  already among the lowest C02 emissions in the

         19  country by an additional 20 percent is simply not

         20  feasible, certainly not economically feasible.

         21                 New York City consumers are already

         22  paying premium electric rates because of the clean

         23  fuels used by existing generators in New York City.

         24                 In contrast, the rest of the nation

         25  relies heavily on low-priced coal to produce
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          2  electricity.

          3                 Coal plants emit at least 50 percent

          4  more C02 than similarly sized plants burning natural

          5  gas.

          6                 Forcing all New York City generator

          7  units to reduce C02 emissions 20 percent below the

          8  current low baseline emission rates, would require

          9  some to burn natural gas exclusively and others

         10  might have to be completely shut down.

         11                 The adverse impact on the electric

         12  system, on the reliability of the electric system,

         13  and on the ratepayers of New York City and New York

         14  City's economy, would be substantial. While the

         15  global warming benefits would be imperceptible and

         16  possibly, quite likely, counterproductive.

         17                 Based on recent fuel prices, our

         18  estimated indicate that forcing existing generating

         19  units to burn natural gas exclusively in order to

         20  comply with the provisions of the bill, will add 80

         21  million to 120 million to the cost of New York City

         22  generation every year.

         23                 This represents an increase of about

         24  ten to 15 percent in the total cost of New York City

         25  generation.
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          2                 Some of New York City's electric

          3  supply will simply shift towards more competitive

          4  import power from unregulated units just outside of

          5  New York City.

          6                 Such imported generation will have

          7  higher emission rates than if it were generated in

          8  New York City and actually increase C02 and other

          9  pollutant loadings in the region.

         10                 Operating New York City generation

         11  exclusively on natural gas will also weaken electric

         12  system reliability. The loss of fuel diversity makes

         13  the electric system more vulnerable to possible

         14  blackout situations, in the event of sudden loss of

         15  natural gas pipeline pressure which occurs from time

         16  to time due to accidents or mechanical failure or

         17  simply the unavailability of natural gas.

         18                 The added natural gas demand will

         19  place upward pressure on the price of natural gas

         20  for heating your constituents and our customers

         21  homes and businesses.

         22                 Lastly, Section 2H of the bill, which

         23  exempts generating units whose electric units are

         24  regulated by the PSC, is very perplexing.

         25                 Why should such units be exempt
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          2  simply based on their regulatory rate structure when

          3  their emissions of C02 are no different than non-PSC

          4  regulated units?

          5                 For all these reasons, I would

          6  strongly urge the Council to join with KeySpan to

          7  support C02 emission regulation at the federal

          8  level, where the reductions can be achieved across

          9  the board, and where the economic burden of

         10  achieving desirable C02 reductions can be shared

         11  equitably across the country.

         12                 KeySpan's lien C02-emitting New York

         13  City powerplants, and New York City ratepayers,

         14  should not be asked to bear a disproportionate

         15  burden in footing the bill to curb global warming.

         16                 If the Council Members believe local

         17  legislation is appropriate, KeySpan would be pleased

         18  to work with the Council, Mr. Vallone, Mr. Gennaro,

         19  Committee members Council staff and the DEP to

         20  develop legislation along the lines of that which

         21  was developed in Nassau County and Suffolk County.

         22                 The Nassau and Suffolk bills set a

         23  more realistic baseline from which a further 20

         24  percent target reduction will be mandated.

         25                 This will allow more flexible and
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          2  economic fuel options to be utilized by existing

          3  generators and will still assure that New York City

          4  will continue among the leaders in the country in

          5  minimizing C02 emission rates.

          6                 Once achieved New York City C02

          7  emission rates will be about 35 or 40 percent lower

          8  than the rest of the nation.

          9                 The Nassau and Suffolk laws also

         10  incorporate flexible C02 trading mechanisms which

         11  enhance compliance flexibility by allowing credit

         12  for global C02 reductions acquired by the generator.

         13                 In conclusion, KeySpan looks forward

         14  to continuing a constructive dialogue with the

         15  Council on this important issue as it receives

         16  further consideration.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         18  you, Mr. Teetz.

         19                 Looks like you have some nice things

         20  to say about what they did in Nassau and Suffolk.

         21                 MR. TEETZ: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, could we do

         23  that here?

         24                 MR. TEETZ: I think we'd be happy to

         25  work with you to craft this bill or modify it along
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          2  those lines.

          3                 I think what they've done in Nassau

          4  and Suffolk is much more flexible. It does not

          5  result in absolute 100 percent reliance on natural

          6  gas. It maintains that fuel diversity, which I think

          7  is very critical to our reliability and to

          8  economics.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         10                 What's the biggest difference? The

         11  baseline thing?

         12                 MR. TEETZ: The difference in the

         13  baseline, yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         15                 MR. TEETZ: Instead of using an

         16  average of three years, which is what you're

         17  proposing, which happens to be years in which

         18  natural gas was very low in prices, as testified by

         19  Mr. Miller.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         21                 MR. TEETZ: It uses a baseline at

         22  1,800 pounds per megawatt hour. This is still

         23  aggressive. It happens to be the termination point

         24  of a bill in Massachusetts where they expect to get

         25  down to 1,800 pounds per megawatt hour, Nassau and
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          2  Suffolk County start at 1,800 down from megawatt

          3  hour and down 20 percent from there.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: From there?

          5                 MR. TEETZ: Yes.

          6                 So, it's a baseline that I think most

          7  of the generators in New York City could live with.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. Is the

          9  Nassau bill and this other bill pretty similar?

         10                 MR. TEETZ: Yes, they're identical. As

         11  long as additional units ultimately are repowered,

         12  and as new units, more efficient units come on line.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What would the

         14  baseline be under the bill that we're proposing in

         15  those units that --

         16                 MR. TEETZ: Our rough calculation

         17  based on those three years is on the order of 1,400

         18  pounds per megawatt hour.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And Nassau and

         20  Suffolk have 1,800.

         21                 MR. TEETZ: Right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But if our

         23  plants are already more efficient and all that than

         24  those are in Nassau, wouldn't it make sense that

         25  we'd be a little stricter than they are? I'm asking
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          2  to negotiate against yourself.

          3                 MR. TEETZ: We could work together to

          4  see what might be a more appropriate level. But we

          5  think 1,800 is pretty aggressive.

          6                 Some of these peaking units that were

          7  mentioned earlier have emission rates up in the

          8  2,200 to 2,300 tons per megawatt hour range.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         10                 But it seems what I'm hearing is if

         11  it were just to play with a baseline a little bit we

         12  could, you know, might be able to get something done

         13  here.

         14                 MR. TEETZ: I think so.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Now, I know

         16  KeySpan is very big on Long Island.

         17                 MR. TEETZ: Correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is my pal Tom

         19  Dejasu out there working with you folks?

         20                 MR. TEETZ: Tom works closely with us.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         22                 Was he for that, the whole Nassau

         23  thing?

         24                 MR. TEETZ: Absolutely.

         25                 Once we sat down to negotiate the
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          2  technical details.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, perhaps we

          4  should take a look at it.

          5                 Is there any other substantive -- so,

          6  they baseline this one thing? You also mentioned

          7  something about giving credit for other things that

          8  we don't give credit for?

          9                 MR. TEETZ: There's also some more

         10  flexibility built into the compliance allowances.

         11                 The City bill as proposed would allow

         12  trading only within New York City.

         13                 When you look at global warming, a

         14  ton of C02 reduced in New York City is as good as a

         15  ton of C02 reduced in Montana. It really doesn't

         16  matter, it has the same benefit. So, why not allow

         17  trading in a much broader geographical area. And the

         18  Nassau and Suffolk County bills allow that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So that works

         20  for producers here as well?

         21                 MR. TEETZ: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And there would

         23  be a benefit?

         24                 MR. TEETZ: Exactly.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Obviously, I
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          2  have more questions, but we'll sit down as we have

          3  in the past and go through it.

          4                 Mr. Teetz, thank you very much.

          5                 I appreciate your perspectives. Maybe

          6  we could move the ball forward a little bit, and

          7  thanks very much, say hi to Tom for me.

          8                 MR. TEETZ: I will.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, then the

         10  next panel as previously announced. Marc Brammer;

         11  Jason Babbie; Craig Wilson. To be followed by Randy

         12  Price and the good people from Con Ed.

         13                 We've got a power point presentation

         14  here? Okay, we're all speed readers and speed

         15  listeners here, so we're ready. And thank you all

         16  very much for coming. I appreciate your presence

         17  here today. Thank you for your testimony.

         18                 We'll ask Counsel to the Committee,

         19  Donna DeCostanzo, who will administer the oath, and

         20  then we will let you folks present your testimony.

         21                 I have Marc Brammer; Craig Wilson

         22  from American Lung; and NYPIRG. Okay, I've got all

         23  the testimony here.

         24                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         25  right hand.
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          2                 In the testimony that you're about to

          3  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          4  whole truth and nothing but the truth.

          5                 MR. BRAMMER: I do.

          6                 MR. CRAIG: I do.

          7                 MR. BABBIE: I do.

          8                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

         11  very much. And you can decide amongst yourselves who

         12  is going to be first. Just state your name for the

         13  record, and proceed with your testimony.

         14                 I'll pick if you need me to pick.

         15  Consensus building, we like that.

         16                 MR. WILSON: Good afternoon. My name

         17  is Craig Wilson. I am the Associate Director of

         18  Environmental Health for the American Lung

         19  Association.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're going to

         21  do the bronchitis thing for me, okay? We'll talk

         22  about that separately.

         23                 MR. WILSON: The American Lung

         24  Association of the City of New York.

         25                 Founded in 1902, the American Lung
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          2  Association of the City of New York is the oldest

          3  voluntary health agency in the nation, and for more

          4  than a century we have had to fight for long health

          5  and clean air.

          6                 Each year more than 5 million New

          7  York City residents suffer from lung diseases, such

          8  as asthma, emphysema, influenza, lung cancer and as

          9  you mentioned, bronchitis.

         10                 When the American Lung Association's

         11  annual state-of-the-art report released each May,

         12  all five boroughs received F's for ozone air

         13  pollution for the third year in a row.

         14                 Overall, New York City was ranked the

         15  20th worst metropolitan area, in terms of ozone

         16  pollution in the United States.

         17                 Recognizing these troubling

         18  statistics, I'm here today to offer our support for

         19  Intro. 30.

         20                 This proposed legislation will

         21  sharply reduce the amount of greenhouses emitted by

         22  electric-generating units, which are a leading

         23  source of emissions.

         24                 While global warming is strictly

         25  thought of as an environmental issue, the ALA of the
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          2  City of New York views it as a health issue. Here is

          3  why.

          4                 First, global warming causes ozone to

          5  form more rapidly and thus raises the likelihood for

          6  those with asthma to experience an attack.

          7                 Ozone is a highly-corrosive gas that

          8  when inhaled causes acute respiratory problems,

          9  asthma, causes inflammation of lung tissue, and

         10  leads to hospital emissions and emergency visits.

         11                 Ozone is formed when emissions from

         12  smoke stacks and tailpipes are cooked on hot sunny

         13  days.

         14                 Researchers in NASA's Jet Propulsion

         15  Labs have found a linear relationship between

         16  ambient temperatures and the likelihood of an ozone

         17  problem in Los Angeles.

         18                 Specifically they found that when

         19  temperature was at or below 70 degrees Fahrenheit

         20  there was a zero percent chance of an ozone

         21  exceedence and when temperature rose above 90

         22  degrees the chance was 100 percent.

         23                 Here in New York City we witness

         24  firsthand this direct relationship between Ozone

         25  exceedences in temperature this past summer, as up
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          2  to 19 ozone experiences reported during this

          3  particularly hot season.

          4                 Second, efforts require reductions in

          5  greenhouse gases also reduce ambient levels of fine

          6  particles and ozone.

          7                 Researchers looking into the near

          8  term health benefits of greenhouse gas reduction

          9  strategies have found that New Yorkers could benefit

         10  greatly from efforts to reduce greenhouse gases.

         11                 A June 2001 edition of Environmental

         12  Health Perspectives reports indicating that efforts

         13  to address global warming in New York City could

         14  prevent 8,700 premature deaths, 56 of which would be

         15  infants, 3,000 hospitalizations and 25,000 emergency

         16  room visits over 20 years.

         17                 These benefits would come as a result

         18  of lower concentrations of airborne fine particles

         19  and ozone.

         20                 The American Lung Association is

         21  committed to reducing these two pollutants as the

         22  substances are directly linked to premature

         23  mortality in seniors, increased rates of lung

         24  cancer, asthma and other lung illnesses.

         25                 Now more than ever, New Yorkers and
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          2  Americans are aware of the value of every breath we

          3  take. The ALA of the City of New York is devoted to

          4  making sure that these breaths are clean and safe.

          5                 Cleaning up emissions from electric

          6  generating units is a vital step to ensuring the

          7  lung health of our City, state and nation for

          8  generations to come and therefore we offer our full

          9  support for Intro. 30.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         12  much. I won't ask questions individually to

         13  witnesses until you've all presented your testimony.

         14  But we certainly would like to get a copy of this

         15  study that you mentioned, the June 2001 addition of

         16  Environmental Health Perspectives and as someone who

         17  just lost his mom to lung cancer in the last couple

         18  of months, it just happened late November I lost my

         19  mom to lung cancer, I value more than ever the great

         20  work that the American Lung Association does, and I

         21  appreciate your efforts to fight lung cancer and

         22  lung diseases, and I look forward to getting this

         23  study, and I'll ask more questions of you once the

         24  other folks in the panel to continue with their

         25  testimony. Thank you.
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          2                 MR. WILSON: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 MR. BABBIE: Thanks for having us

          6  here. I'll try to be quick. I know this has been a

          7  long meeting.

          8                 So, I had a bunch of testimony that I

          9  wanted to read very quickly, but I did have some

         10  responses to the testimony that had been earlier,

         11  and if that's okay to do?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         13                 MR. BRAMMER: I guess the first thing

         14  that comes to mind, and I imagine that the Committee

         15  is aware, for instance, in Mr. Miller's testimony, I

         16  think their consideration of the 14th Street Plan,

         17  and I'm a resident of 14th Street, as a

         18  quote/unquote efficient, more efficient generating

         19  capacity of a plant is extremely incorrect.

         20                 I mean, given that that plant has had

         21  two transformer explosions in the past couple of

         22  years, and has also been besieged by local

         23  residents, due to pollution problems coming out of

         24  that plant. If that is what the City Energy

         25  Committee is considering an efficient generating
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          2  unit, I think we need to re-examine what it is

          3  that's considered efficient.

          4                 And I think that also brings into

          5  question a lot of the testimony by some of the

          6  gentlemen that are from KeySpan, about how efficient

          7  New York City generating plants are, because I think

          8  there's a lot of room for improvement, and I think

          9  the asthma statistics, which have been discussed

         10  here, and I'm just going to go quickly through the

         11  slides.

         12                 This is hospitalizations by 1,000

         13  people in the City of New York. And if you look, a

         14  lot of the proposed generating units are pretty much

         15  adjacent or in communities that have already

         16  extraordinarily high levels, or adjacent to the

         17  communities that extraordinarily high levels of

         18  asthma, and New York City has right now the highest

         19  levels of asthma than any municipality of our size

         20  in the nation.

         21                 So, I think at this point we have to

         22  start saying from a cost basis who is paying the

         23  cost of generating. And I think that a lot of what's

         24  been said about --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm sorry, can I
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          2  just jump in to clarify? You said municipalities of

          3  our size, or the highest rate in the country?

          4                 MR. BRAMMER: My understanding is, the

          5  phrase I've heard is highest rates in the country.

          6  So, I'm not exactly certain, as far as giving

          7  official testimony, I can't testify as to whether we

          8  have the highest rates in the country, that is my

          9  understanding due to my research that I have heard,

         10  and I imagine maybe my colleague here can testify to

         11  that.

         12                 MR. BABBIE: I can find out in more

         13  detail specifically, but we do certainly have

         14  amongst the highest rates in the country, over

         15  500,000 within the City, over a million in the metro

         16  area.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you could get

         18  our Committee that, and with a copy to me, I'd like

         19  to have that. Thank you.

         20                 MR. BABBIE: Absolutely.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         22  Please continue.

         23                 MR. BRAMMER: My understanding also is

         24  there has been epidemiological studies done around

         25  14th Street plant that show some families with
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          2  asthma rates up to 70 percent. And I don't have that

          3  on me now, but I'll make sure this Committee has --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, we're

          5  taking sort of a global look and we can't

          6  necessarily restrict ourselves to the discussion of

          7  one specific plant, although this plant is

          8  emblematic of a point that you're trying to make.

          9                 MR. BRAMMER: Exactly.

         10                 Well, to move on, I think also to

         11  counter some of the testimony, I think the reason,

         12  the most compelling reason why this Committee and

         13  this City needs to act is that we have to face up,

         14  and this was point four in my testimony that I think

         15  really deserves priority here, and I'll read that.

         16  The political realities of the federal government

         17  policy failures with respect to global warming must

         18  be faced up to and dealt with by local legislators

         19  and   government officials.

         20                 We must begin to improve air quality

         21  to address the upcoming decline in air quality to

         22  the southwest, as a result of so-called Clear Sky

         23  Program.

         24                 We must also demonstrate to the rest

         25  of the country that dealing with global warming in a
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          2  substantial and real way is doable.

          3                 Finally, we must establish in law C02

          4  emissions constitute pollution. Intro. 30 begins to

          5  address all of these concerns.

          6                 And I'd like to point out that also

          7  in response to KeySpan testimony, that it's my

          8  understanding that the Nassau and Suffolk County has

          9  really this feel-good legislation, that almost every

         10  facility pretty much comply with the law at the

         11  beginning. So, for them to come up and say, yeah, we

         12  want to do that, means that that means they want to

         13  impose a law in New York City that wouldn't require

         14  any improvement. And that's what we're going for

         15  here.

         16                 And I think what this light here

         17  shows you is, the different rates of C02 emissions

         18  based on different scenarios, so the black is sort

         19  of a business as usual. The gray, which is below

         20  that, is the White House Plan. This was put together

         21  by the American Council for an Energy Efficient

         22  Economy. The green at the very bottom is sort of a

         23  Kyoto plan delayed by ten years.

         24                 So, I think what we're looking at

         25  here, as has been noted in many other testimonies,
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          2  C02 is a criteria pollutant in the lung that matches

          3  up well with other pollutants.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's not a

          5  criteria pollutant according to Clean Air Act, but

          6  --

          7                 MR. BRAMMER: You're absolutely

          8  correct in that assertion.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's one that

         10  would track the others so-to-speak.

         11                 MR. BRAMMER: I'm jumping the gun and

         12  going with my own personal wish that it was a

         13  criteria pollutant because I think it should be.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         15                 MR. BRAMMER: But it does track with

         16  other criteria pollutants.

         17                 So, if under the White House Plan, as

         18  assessed by the ACEEE, the C02 rates are going to go

         19  up in this country. That would imply that air

         20  quality will go down. And since we have no control

         21  over the federal government, it's clear that they're

         22  very antagonistic to do anything really significant

         23  about this such as the Kyoto plant. We have no

         24  choice but to have the City deal with this on a

         25  local basis.
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          2                 Now, I would say that maybe perhaps

          3  it makes sense to negotiate this bill by enlarging

          4  the geographic area in which trading can happen, but

          5  I mean I think there should be significant emphasis

          6  placed on the fact that that happens maybe in local

          7  plants like New Jersey that have a direct local

          8  impact on New York City air quality.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We were going to

         10  ask you about that, because the whole trading

         11  program which would give credits so far away from

         12  the City sounded like it -- we didn't know how

         13  effective that would be, so we were going to ask

         14  you.

         15                 MR. BRAMMER: Maybe this is something

         16  to add into the Lexicon here is the concept to the

         17  wind-shed, like a watershed. We're in a wind-shed

         18  and the wind-shed we're in is pretty nasty, and I

         19  think that's obviously something that has been

         20  addressed here.

         21                 So, the extent to which New York can

         22  actually take actions that maybe do affect the

         23  generating capacity upwind, that may make some real

         24  sense because it may have a real direct impact, but

         25  the further, obviously, that you get away from the

                                                            125

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  geographic center of New York, the less direct

          3  impact, money and efforts, you know, taken on behalf

          4  of that will have as a direct affect to New Yorkers.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And how far away

          6  is that wind-shed?

          7                 MR. BRAMMER: That's not something I

          8  could really comment on. Because I think it would

          9  have to do with prevailing wind. It would have to do

         10  with the polluting capacity of each generating

         11  plant.

         12                 It might make more sense to go

         13  further away to deal with a very, very specific

         14  facility that's extraordinarily polluting, but then

         15  again, my position is that working with stuff that's

         16  just across the river in New Jersey might be more

         17  effective. And also from the state of the ability to

         18  go and to meet with people and get things done that

         19  might make more sense.

         20                 MR. BABBIE: Just to elaborate on that

         21  point. I think our wind-shed is actually quite

         22  large, as noted by Attorney General Spitzer's

         23  actions to pursuing power plants in Ohio and

         24  Pittsburgh and Pennyslvania.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, we're
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          2  getting a little feel.

          3                 I would like you, Mr. Brammer, to

          4  kind of finish your testimony, then Mr. Babbie and

          5  then we'll have some questions.

          6                 MR. BRAMMER: Okay. I just want to

          7  finalize by addressing two other issues on the

          8  economics here.

          9                 These graphs here, I've gotten this

         10  information from the Department of Energy, the

         11  Energy Information Association. As it shows here,

         12  New York in red, is this is residential, monthly

         13  average residential rates for New York State

         14  consumers, and as you can in the red, the only State

         15  that actually pays higher rates than us is Hawaii,

         16  and I'd like to point out that that's an island in

         17  the middle of the Pacific a thousand miles from

         18  anywhere.

         19                 So, you do have to question why it is

         20  that we pay high rates. Now, my understanding is

         21  that that's based on taxes and that's based on our

         22  distribution system, which is more expensive to

         23  maintain.

         24                 So, in relation to, this is revenues

         25  generated by electricity generators in the State of
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          2  New York. They earned as much money, more money than

          3  any other state in the union with the exception of

          4  Texas and California, which have obviously much

          5  larger populations than New York State.

          6                 So, for them to come and say to us

          7  that, you have a huge pollution problem, you have

          8  all these health problems, but too expensive for us

          9  to do anything about it, when they're making almost

         10  -- and this holds true on a per capita basis as

         11  well. It seems to me to be a little be specious.

         12                 So, I just want to address those

         13  concerns.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And that graph

         15  is included in your presentation? Oh, here it is on

         16  page six.

         17                 MR. BRAMMER: On page six.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Five and six.

         19                 MR. BRAMMER: That's correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         21                 MR. BRAMMER: I actually, I think I'm

         22  going to turn it over to Jason at this point.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         24                 MR. BRAMER: I had a few more

         25  questions but maybe you'll have questions for us in
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          2  the end and I can address that other issue.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Thank you.

          4  Thank you very much.

          5                 MR. BABBIE: Good afternoon. My name

          6  is Jason Babbie. I've been Environmental Policy

          7  Analyst for the New York Public Interest Research

          8  Group NYPIRG, the State's largest environmental

          9  consumer organization with our headquarters about

         10  half a block from here.

         11                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members

         12  of the Committee, and Council Member Vallone for

         13  introducing the bill, I'm here to talk about Intro.

         14  30. I won't go through the written testimony, I just

         15  want to sort of pick out some highlights and address

         16  some key issues.

         17                 Obviously the intent of the bill is

         18  to address carbon dioxide emissions from power

         19  plants and to address global warming, and I think

         20  that that is something to be commended for. You

         21  know, over 2,500 scientists agree that global

         22  warming is real and human activities such as the use

         23  of outdated power plants is causing global warming.

         24  And while global warming may be a worldwide problem,

         25  they are very real, very local potential impacts if
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          2  we do nothing.

          3                 In fact, in July of 2001, the

          4  Columbia Earth Institute has in Columbia University

          5  released a study that looks at some of the potential

          6  consequences of global warming on the New York

          7  metropolitan area.

          8                 To highlight just a couple of them,

          9  as the American Lung Association testified, when we

         10  have hotter days, hotter summer days, we have more

         11  problems with ozone.

         12                 Currently we're at about 14 days a

         13  year where we're above 1990 degrees Fahrenheit, and

         14  by 2100 that will be at least projected 40 days and

         15  up to 89 days every single summer were above 90.

         16  Those are a lot of really bad ozone days. That means

         17  a lot of respiratory problems for the City of New

         18  York.

         19                 Also, there's rising sea levels which

         20  will affect not only our shore lines, wetlands and

         21  back-up water supplies, and also there's a lot of

         22  flooding, and when you add on top of that the

         23  projected increase in severe weather events, we're

         24  going to see a lot of flooding.

         25                 Two-thirds of New York City's
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          2  infrastructure is less than ten feet above sea

          3  level, that's where we're projected to see flooding

          4  about every ten years, according to this and other

          5  studies that International Climate Change have done,

          6  with annualized loss of $100 million to $300 million

          7  a year.

          8                 You know, that is very real money,

          9  and now those are very real impacts. Also, there's a

         10  protected increase in insect-carried or vector-borne

         11  diseases, such as West Nile encephalitis, Lyme

         12  disease and malaria. And some of which we're already

         13  having problems here with in the City.

         14                 We talked about the, it's been talked

         15  about today, the interest of New York City helping

         16  to move the State and the federal government, and I

         17  actually think that this will do that, I think it

         18  needs to be done.

         19                 On Wednesday, the president of the

         20  Administration rather, unveiled its plan

         21  quote/unquote to deal with global warming. And what

         22  it is, it's a voluntary plan, and it's based on

         23  carbon intensity, and it was criticized actually

         24  pretty heavily in today's New York Times in an

         25  editorial.
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          2                 Having a voluntary plan is not going

          3  to work. In 1992, the United States said that we

          4  would voluntarily reduce our greenhouse gas

          5  emissions to 1990 levels by the Year 2000. Well,

          6  it's now 2003 and we're at 19 percent increase from

          7  1990 levels, so the exact opposite has happened, and

          8  also it's based on an intensity level or a rate

          9  level, which admittedly this bill is also based on,

         10  but we're talking about federal legislation, and

         11  federal legislation we need a cap, because a cap is

         12  what's going to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

         13                 In the absence of federal actions,

         14  certain states have taken action, Massachusetts and

         15  New Hampshire have instituted statewide caps and

         16  carbon dioxide emissions from powerplants. Oregon

         17  has introduced and instituted a rate cap.

         18  Unfortunately New York has done neither one of

         19  those.

         20                 In the absence of state and federal

         21  actions, certain counties and municipalities have

         22  taken, we've talked about Nassau and Suffolk taking

         23  a lead on that. And I think it would be a great idea

         24  for one of the world's major cities to take that

         25  very same approach --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The major City.

          3                 MR. BABBIE: The major City.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          5                 MR. BABBIE: We're the third largest

          6  delegation in Congress, that helps put pressure on

          7  federal actions. In fact, also earlier this week,

          8  Senator Inhoff, who is the Chair of the

          9  Environmental Public Works Committee, even said that

         10  he probably can't get a bill dealing with power

         11  plant pollution out of the Senate without including

         12  carbon in it.

         13                 That's a major, major change, and a

         14  major development. This is not someone who is known

         15  to be a friend to the environment.

         16                 And, so, for him to make that

         17  concession shows there is movement on this issue. I

         18  think New York City and New York State making that

         19  will help that.

         20                 Also on Wednesday, Senator Jeffords

         21  introduced the Clean Smoke Stacks Act, which would

         22  set 1990 level emission standards for power plants,

         23  and, of course, both of our Senators, Senator

         24  Clinton and Senator Schumer have been champions on

         25  that very issue.
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          2                 Aside from addressing global warming

          3  there are major co-benefits. You know, very real

          4  local health benefits. And I won't go into all of

          5  them but as has been testified earlier today, when

          6  we addressed global warming, we also addressed

          7  nitrogen oxide and sulfur dioxide, which is ozone,

          8  smog and soot.

          9                 And that's an important health

         10  co-benefit that really I think should be looked at,

         11  when we're deciding a trade system or anything else

         12  than what standard we're setting on that.

         13                 Because of all these reasons, NYPIRG

         14  does support Intro. 30 and think it should be

         15  passed. There are local and global benefits for

         16  doing so.

         17                 And I just want to also just touch on

         18  one thing before we go to questions, in that if part

         19  of the design of this piece of legislation is to

         20  help push state and federal actions, setting up a

         21  program that maintains trading within New York State

         22  will publicly do a better job in pushing New York

         23  State action than allowing some of that to happen in

         24  New Jersey. But there are other benefits and other

         25  considerations to look into.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          4  you. And your last point touches something that I

          5  was going to go and talk about, you know, how big

          6  should the playing field be for the trading of

          7  credit, and in my own mind I was thinking, well, if

          8  you want to influence people on the New York State

          9  level, if we were to keep it in the states, instead

         10  of all in the family so to speak and that might, you

         11  know, might be a route to go, although

         12  geographically the people in New Jersey are right

         13  next door to us, sort of right there. So, that was

         14  what I was going to ask of you, and you read my mind

         15  and answered it before I asked it.

         16                 And is it your belief, Mr. Babbie,

         17  that the efforts of Nassau and Suffolk were not so

         18  much substantive as feel good; is that your sense of

         19  it?

         20                 MR. BABBIE: Yes, I think that they

         21  helped push the issue and present the issue, they

         22  brought it to a larger base.

         23                 On top of, in Suffolk County, on top

         24  of the legislation they also passed a resolution

         25  calling for a statewide cap, that was unanimous.
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          2                 The Buffalo City Council has also

          3  unanimously passed a resolution calling on a

          4  Statewide cap. I actually would like to take this

          5  time to thank you for your letter to Governor Pataki

          6  calling for a statewide cap on carbon dioxide

          7  emissions that was in the testimony that I forgot to

          8  say.

          9                 So, thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet. It's my

         11  pleasure to go on the record with the Governor. We

         12  tried. We tried.

         13                 I also would like to use the American

         14  Lung Association as a resource. I bet you have a lot

         15  of information that we could use to include in some

         16  of our materials. So I would like all of you to work

         17  closely with the Council to the Committee and

         18  Councilman Vallone's office as we proceed.

         19                 This is the first hearing on this

         20  bill in the new Council, and so we very much would

         21  like to have you on board, as we go forward with

         22  your respective institutions and your long history

         23  of advocacy.

         24                 So, welcome to the team. I appreciate

         25  it.
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          2                 Peter, do you have anything.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I'd just like

          4  to thank you for coming down here and presenting

          5  this information to us. It will be useful. Perhaps

          6  this week isn't the best week to be talking about

          7  global warming, I've got some people in favor of

          8  that, but the fact that you did mention that by

          9  lowering carbon dioxide would also be the legitimate

         10  and perhaps primary goal here in New York City of

         11  lowering pollution, in addition to all the added

         12  benefits we get out of lowering carbon dioxide. So

         13  we look forward to working with you on this.

         14                 I'm unclear as to what action was

         15  taken, since we've been here for so long now, close

         16  to a year, but Donna, if we have not introduced a

         17  resolution yet, I'd like Jim and I to co-sponsor a

         18  resolution calling on the State, if that's okay with

         19  you, Chairman, to initiate a statewide cap on this.

         20                 I believe we may have done it, or it

         21  may be in the works already, but if we have not, I'd

         22  like Jim and I to cosponsor that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That sounds like

         24  a good idea. I mean, we've already been in contact

         25  with the Governor on that, why not get the whole
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          2  Council on the record on this important issue? So,

          3  thank you, Councilman Vallone, for that

          4  recommendation, and I do direct Counsel to the

          5  Committee to put that in motion.

          6                 See, we're getting it done here.

          7  We're getting it done.

          8                 MR. BABBIE: The government can work.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: There you go.

         10  There you go.

         11                 MR. BABBIE: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thanks very much

         13  for your testimony, and I appreciate in a very

         14  special way the work of American Lung Association on

         15  your great advocacy and to combat lung diseases,

         16  which can be devastating to families, mine

         17  particularly. Thank you very much.

         18                 MR. BRAMMER: Included in my testimony

         19  I included a program that's being piloted in the

         20  State of New Hampshire now called the Pay As You

         21  Save Program, and I took this opportunity to put it

         22  in there because I knew that one of the things that

         23  would come up in this testimony was the need for

         24  energy efficiency in the City. And I just asked you

         25  to maybe take a look at this because I think it
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          2  might be an important tool going forward.

          3                 I just wanted to leave it at that and

          4  just point that out to you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you.

          7                 We've been doing a lot on energy

          8  conservation. I mentioned before Speaker Miller and

          9  several members of the Council, including myself,

         10  have a comprehensive energy conservation strategy

         11  that you will be hearing more from us on very, very

         12  soon. And so we appreciate that input as an adjunct

         13  to what we're doing, and I direct Counsel to

         14  incorporate that, or take a look at that and see how

         15  that fits into what Speaker Miller and myself are

         16  doing. So, thanks for bringing that to our

         17  attention. I appreciate it. Thanks very much. Happy

         18  Valentines Day.

         19                 The next witness will be Mr. Randy

         20  Price and the folks from Con Ed, to be followed by

         21  Marc Dworkin of NRG Energy.

         22                 Thank you very much for being here

         23  today. I appreciate your testimony. Thank you for

         24  your patience. But now you'll have the ability to

         25  comment on what has come before. And so thanks for
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          2  waiting so patiently to give us the benefit of your

          3  views which we value very much and Donna DeCostanzo

          4  will put you through the ritual and then we'll get

          5  going.

          6                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          7  right hand.

          8                 In the testimony that you are about

          9  to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth,

         10  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         11                 MR. PRICE: I do.

         12                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yes.

         13                 MR. SHANSKY: Yes.

         14                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let the record

         16  show that they all said yes.

         17                 Thanks very much. Whoever is going to

         18  be the lead spokesman, identify yourself and your

         19  colleagues for the record, and proceed with your

         20  good testimony.

         21                 MR. PRICE: Thank you, and good

         22  afternoon. My name is Randy Price, Vice President of

         23  Environment Health and Safety for Consolidated

         24  Edison Company of New York, Inc., known as Con

         25  Edison.
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          2                 With me is Dan Cunningham and Rick

          3  Shansky, in case the questions get more technical

          4  than I'm comfortable handling.

          5                 I welcome the opportunity to present

          6  our comments today on Intro. 30, which would amend

          7  the Administrative Code of the City of New York

          8  relating to carbon dioxide emissions from

          9  electric-generating units.

         10                 At the outset, I'd like to remind the

         11  Committee that as a result of deregulation, Con

         12  Edison sold its electric-generating units, thus

         13  leaving the company directly in control of only the

         14  distribution side of its electric service.

         15                 The only exception to this pertains

         16  to Con Edison's three steam electric plants, which I

         17  will primarily focus on today.

         18                 These plants are primarily steam

         19  generation units serving the company's steam system.

         20  They also provide the ancillary benefit of

         21  generating electricity that is added to the grid.

         22                 In our December 4th, 2000 testimony

         23  on this bill, then known as Intro. 803, we

         24  highlighted facts about Con Edison's steam system,

         25  which is the largest district steam system in the
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          2  world, extending from the southern tip of Manhattan

          3  north to 96th Street.  Virtually every sector of

          4  Manhattan's economy depends on steam service from

          5  the company's system for space heating, air

          6  conditioning, production of domestic hot water and

          7  other uses.

          8                 Steam customers comprise a

          9  cross-section of the City's most prominent

         10  establishments, as well as major hospitals,

         11  universities, City, state and federal government

         12  buildings, and hundreds of major office buildings

         13  and apartment complexes.

         14                 Steam service provides many benefits

         15  for the environment as well, and as for consumers in

         16  the City of New York. The production of steam in our

         17  central plants avoid the need for fossil fuel, fired

         18  boilers at customers' premises and the accompanied

         19  problems such as distributed sources of low-level

         20  emissions, worsened traffic congestion caused by the

         21  deliveries of fuel oil which would be needed to

         22  supplement natural gas and the loss of rentable

         23  space that would be devoted to boilers and the

         24  attended equipment.

         25                 It is also important to recognize
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          2  that our customers' use of steam service for air

          3  conditioning in lieu of electric air conditioning

          4  avoids an even greater growth in the electric power

          5  demands, and the resultant need to build more

          6  electric plants in distribution facilities.

          7                 During our previous testimony, we

          8  expressed concerns about how the bill would saddle

          9  our steam customers with higher cost, thus creating

         10  disincentives for Manhattan property owners to use

         11  steam.

         12                 In response to these concerns and

         13  recognizing the significant environmental benefits

         14  of the Con Edison steam system, an exemption was

         15  added for electric-generating facilities whose rates

         16  for electricity are regulated by the public service

         17  commission, and we commended the Council for this

         18  action in our testimony at the April 30th, 2001

         19  public hearing on Intro. 803-A.

         20                 We again commend the Council for

         21  including this exemption in the most

         22  recently-introduced version, Intro. 30.

         23                 We support the goals of Intro. 30 to

         24  encourage the construction of new efficient electric

         25  generation facilities, and thereby produce cleaner
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          2  air for New York City.

          3                 However, we do wish to bring to this

          4  Committee's attention several issues for your

          5  consideration.

          6                 When this bill was first introduced

          7  in 2000, the Energy situation in the country and the

          8  City was completely different from today.

          9                 In 2000, deregulation of the electric

         10  energy industry was in its infancy.

         11                 Con Edison had just sold its electric

         12  generating plants and there were many players lining

         13  up to build new generation in New York City.

         14                 In such an environment, the economic

         15  incentives proposed by this bill was likely to have

         16  helped stimulate the construction of newer, cleaner,

         17  electric generation, to replace older plants, which

         18  was the stated intent of the legislation.

         19                 However, the terrorist attacks on our

         20  country, the Enron collapse, the ensuing economic

         21  slowdown that continues to persist changed all of

         22  that.

         23                 Merchant plant developers are

         24  experiencing severe financial difficulties. No

         25  matter what carbon dioxide targets are set in the
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          2  financial penalties for non-compliance, New York

          3  City is not expected to see significant new electric

          4  generation bills til the industry gets back to

          5  financial health and the energy market stabilize.

          6                 In other words, under current

          7  economic conditions, this bill on its own would not

          8  necessarily spur the construction of new, newer

          9  cleaner generation that we all support, but instead

         10  would likely only serve to increase the near term

         11  cost of electricity.

         12                 We'd also like to discuss the current

         13  state of controlling or regulating greenhouse gases,

         14  which carbon dioxide is just one.

         15                 There are actions currently being

         16  considered in Albany and Washington to address

         17  greenhouse gases, and Con Edison is actively

         18  involved in many.

         19                 For example, Con Edison is a member

         20  of power partners, a power sector coalition coming

         21  together to reduce America's greenhouse intensity.

         22                 In light of state and federal efforts

         23  in controlling greenhouse gases, we ask that the

         24  Council take into consideration these other

         25  initiatives and to proceed with caution with any
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          2  legislation to regulate carbon dioxide.

          3                 Con Edison is committed to reducing

          4  greenhouse gases, but there is a need for clarity

          5  and consistency in regulation as we move forward.

          6                 Any legislation enacted by this

          7  Council should be compatible with state and federal

          8  efforts.

          9                 In conclusion we again thank the City

         10  Council and this Committee for recognizing the

         11  important role that our steam system plays for the

         12  economy and for the environment of the City.

         13                 We look forward to working with you

         14  in developing ways of bringing our cleaner economic

         15  energy to the citizens of New York City.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         18  you very much.

         19                 It seems that the main thrust of your

         20  statement was kind of like that was then and this is

         21  now, and now is a lot different than the landscape

         22  that was in place when we first set out on this

         23  journey, or the previous Council set out on its

         24  journey in the Year 2000.

         25                 And you make reference to any
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          2  legislation enacted by the Council should be

          3  compatible with State and federal efforts. I think

          4  our intent is to try to help spur state efforts to

          5  get going and if we are to wait and not act, perhaps

          6  lose our ability to get them to act, but certainly

          7  we want to do something that makes sense, and I'm

          8  getting from you the sense that you don't think that

          9  anything we could do now on -- let me frame it

         10  differently.

         11                 We had the Administration come here,

         12  and the Commissioner said, look, you know, we think

         13  that it's possible to do something legislatively in

         14  the City that would make sense for everybody, make

         15  sense for the power producers, make sense for the

         16  environment, make sense for the ratepayers.

         17                 Do you concur with that statement

         18  that there is an action or set of actions that we

         19  could take legislatively here in New York City that

         20  would bring about a value added in terms of, you

         21  know, C02 emissions and not be a burden on the

         22  ratepayers? Do you believe there is legislation out

         23  there in some way, shape or form that we could do

         24  that would do that?

         25                 MR. PRICE: I would say that two
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          2  things that you can probably do in the short term,

          3  one is to work with the Governor's Office to at

          4  least understand the direction that they're trying

          5  to go in, and if there's something that the City can

          6  do to help spur that, of course that makes sense.

          7                 One of the things that we're

          8  encouraging the Governor's office to do is to work

          9  with the other state's in the northeast to effect as

         10  big, have as big an impact as possible.

         11                 So, I think the comment of just

         12  making sure that we have alignment, was a comment

         13  there.

         14                 The other action that I think could

         15  happen is, there is, as you know, the Article 10

         16  process in the state that is a permitting process to

         17  allow new and more efficient facilities to be built.

         18  Article 10 expired at the end of last year. And if

         19  we are to build new facilities, and you know, we're

         20  certainly in favor of new generation, I think

         21  whatever the City can do to encourage the State to

         22  support and to re-enact Article 10 process would be

         23  helpful. And that would be the time where all of the

         24  community concerns and environmental concerns are

         25  addressed through a public participation.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, but that's

          3  just, you know, resolution to the State, or ask them

          4  to do things. You know, I don't know as though we're

          5  adverse to trying to help out on a statewide playing

          6  field. I think we are not content to wait for this

          7  date and wait for the federal government, we want to

          8  see if we can do something. There are, you know,

          9  people in government, you know, that is the

         10  administration, people in the power generation

         11  industry and people in the community who would think

         12  that there's something out there that we could do

         13  that would be a help. And I don't want to say

         14  anything that I shouldn't say, but we think there's

         15  something that we can do, and we want to know if you

         16  believe that, and whether or not you'd be willing to

         17  help us get there?

         18                 MR. PRICE: Well, I think it's very

         19  easy for me to say that Con Ed is committed to

         20  working with the City and to work at a solution and

         21  where the City can make a difference, and we'll be

         22  happy to work with you.

         23                 I would encourage you, though, that

         24  C02 perhaps different or separate apart from N0X and

         25  S02 truly is a global issue, and the more we can
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          2  broaden our perspective, and we talked about

          3  trading, whether it's just in the City, and the more

          4  we can broaden and reach out to others, I think in

          5  the long-term would have a better effect on the

          6  environment.

          7                 But we're more than happy to and

          8  actually looking forward to working with you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. I just

         10  have one more question before I turn it over to

         11  Council Member Vallone. And that is, you made a

         12  reference to your steam facilities which had some

         13  exemption, and we've heard testimony here that that

         14  shouldn't be the case. Just to give you like one

         15  opportunity to drive home why that's a common sense

         16  thing to have in the bill?

         17                 MR. PRICE: Well, there's two

         18  fundamental reasons for that. First perhaps is the

         19  intent of this legislation, as I understand it, is

         20  to allow market forces to drive down C02 emissions.

         21  And unlike the merchant energy producers, we are

         22  regulated by Public Service Commission. So, our

         23  ability to have prices go up and down and to reap

         24  either the benefit or the penalty is extremely

         25  limited, and ultimately any added costs will have to
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          2  go to the public service commission and ultimately

          3  be in our rate case, and that is not a day-to-day or

          4  a week-to-week activity, that's a multi-year

          5  response.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The other aspect

          7  of why the exemption makes sense is that these are

          8  fundamentally steam plants and for the three plants

          9  that we generate electricity as well, it is, not to

         10  overstate it but we're making the steam and we're

         11  throwing in the electricity. If you compare a

         12  cogeneration to a normal electric generating plant

         13  we're probably twice as efficient, because we're

         14  generating the steam or getting the benefits of

         15  using steam over individual power producing and the

         16  benefit of generating electricity.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 Anybody else wish to speak to that?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Let me just

         21  say that with regard to that question, obviously I'm

         22  not unaware of those concerns and I did read the

         23  testimony from the last meeting in redrafting this

         24  bill we left that in there, the exemption, but I was

         25  not aware of the time at the concerns raised by the
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          2  power companies, nor the fact that Con Ed is

          3  responsible for over 16 percent of the carbon

          4  dioxide. So, I'm not going to go through it today

          5  with you, but we will be sitting down again to go

          6  through the reasons for that exemption, and whether

          7  or not that will remain in the bill.

          8                 And let me just also say that's state

          9  public participation, it's an oxymoron when it comes

         10  to power plants. I've learned that personally.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         13  much. I appreciate the opportunity to have you here.

         14                 We will be coming back to you as we

         15  march forward, and we value your input and your

         16  perspectives and please give our best wishes to John

         17  Banks and the good folks at Con Ed.

         18                 I want to recognize Andy Chin, my pal

         19  in the back of the room, too.

         20                 And, so, thanks very much. I

         21  appreciate it. You'll be hearing from us.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. And, so,

         23  Mr. Marc Dworkin and Arthur Goldstein.

         24                 Now, every hearing has like a special

         25  patience award, or whatever, and you folks won the
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          2  special Valentines Day version of like the special

          3  patience award. And, so, we thank you very much, not

          4  only for being here but patience in people, you

          5  know, express their patience or lack of it in

          6  different ways, they fidget, they smurk, they make

          7  noises, they glance at their watch, they pace, and

          8  you folks have exhibited none of those traits, and

          9  you've been patient in the truest and nicest sense,

         10  and we do appreciate that. And, so, we thank you for

         11  being here. We welcome the opportunity to hear your

         12  views. All of that is a send up for the fact that

         13  we're not going to be serving you any lunch, but we

         14  are looking very much forward to hearing your good

         15  views.

         16                 After Donna puts you through the

         17  oath, then we'll state your names and give us your

         18  testimony. Thank you.

         19                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In your testimony

         20  that you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to

         21  tell the whole truth or nothing but the truth?

         22                 MR. DWORKIN: I do.

         23                 MR. CARTAGENA: I do.

         24                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: I do.

         25                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thanks very

          3  much. Do we have your written statement? Okay, we

          4  have it here.

          5                 So, Mr. Dworkin, if you could state

          6  your name and the names of your colleagues, we would

          7  love to hear your testimony.

          8                 MR. DWORKIN: Sure. My name is Marc

          9  Dworkin. I'm with NRG Energy and I have with me

         10  Orlando Cartagena, he is our Environmental Engineer

         11  for New York City and also Arthur Goldstein.

         12                 First of all, thank you for having us

         13  here today. You've got my written comments, but

         14  basically everything that's written here has already

         15  been said today, so I'm going to keep it very short

         16  and just focus on a couple of points.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Take your

         18  time.

         19                 MR. DWORKIN: Number one, we had a

         20  number of questions when we looked at the bill, that

         21  impacted our ability to do the analysis. One you

         22  heard people hit on today was the baseline, and the

         23  variation on the baseline has a big impact on the

         24  economics to access where the bill falls out.

         25                 We also had questions about what
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          2  generation was included or excluded, including the

          3  Con Ed Generation, which is I believe a large

          4  percentage, or not a minor percentage of the total

          5  generation in New York City.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          7                 MR. DWORKIN: And also the penalty

          8  structure and how would that work. And those are

          9  questions that we hope we could sit down with staff

         10  and work through and get a better handle on so that

         11  we can do a better analysis of what we think the

         12  impact is and to us near the generators.

         13                 One thing in our previous testimony

         14  that we had requested you consider was an exemption

         15  for peakers, we heard Reliant speak to that a little

         16  bit. It's almost impossible for peakers to comply,

         17  given the structure that we see here, and even the

         18  new peaker that we have proposed, it's been

         19  supported by the local community, wouldn't meet this

         20  standard.

         21                 One thing I'm going to spend a little

         22  bit of time on that I didn't hear too much talk

         23  about here today, and that's the potential for

         24  raising power prices in New York City.

         25                 If we're subject to any fine, there's
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          2  two mechanisms where we would look for reimbursement

          3  of that fine, and, number one, is that we're subject

          4  to reference pricing by the New York ISO. So, a good

          5  part of the time the independent generation of New

          6  York City is subject to market mitigation, to

          7  mitigate market power concerns, and this goes back

          8  to the --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Could you help

         10  me to understand that?

         11                 MR. DWORKIN: When the units were

         12  originally sold, because there are only three

         13  in-city generators, independent, the state imposed a

         14  structure of market power mitigation.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Market power

         16  mitigation, okay.

         17                 MR. DWORKIN: That in order to not

         18  allow any one of those three generators to charge

         19  excessive prices, there's a mechanism in place that

         20  when power prices get to certain levels in the

         21  State, that these mitigation methods go into effect

         22  and basically we're required to accept a cost base

         23  rate.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sometimes.

         25                 MR. DWORKIN: Sometimes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sometimes.

          3                 MR. DWORKIN: It was initially

          4  envisioned sometimes. Right now it's about 90

          5  percent of the time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see.

          7                 MR. DWORKIN: So, most of the time

          8  we're subject to these reference prices.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         10                 MR. DWORKIN: And in those reference

         11  prices are all of our fixed and invariable costs are

         12  covered in those.

         13                 So, this would be another invariable

         14  cost that will be factored into the calculation of

         15  reference prices, and would in effect raise prices

         16  across the whole City, and potentially the whole

         17  state. And that's kind of the second part to what I

         18  just wanted to refresh everybody's memory, which I

         19  think you heard before is the way that the ISO

         20  clears the market is this reverse Dutch auction

         21  deal, where it's the highest price --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Where?

         23                 MR. DWORKIN: It's called the "reverse

         24  Dutch auction," and the highest priced megawatt --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Reverse what
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          2  auction?

          3                 MR. DWORKIN: Dutch.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Dutch.

          5                 MR. DWORKIN: Yes. I don't know why.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, like with

          7  the shoes?

          8                 MR. DWORKIN: I guess, or the country.

          9  I don't know.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. The wooden

         11  shoes.

         12                 MR. DWORKIN: The wooden shoes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         14                 MR. DWORKIN: The price paid for

         15  energy across the whole state is determined by the

         16  last megawatt that's selected to run, and that's the

         17  most expensive because they stack them up

         18  economically and they take the cheapest to the most

         19  expensive, so that last, most expensive one, which

         20  in general is probably an older plan that doesn't

         21  necessarily have the cleanest output, and it's going

         22  to be subject to this fine, and what it does in

         23  effect, that guy gets the fine reimbursed. Anybody

         24  that's not paying the fine still gets the money. You

         25  follow?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No.

          3                 MR. DWORKIN: Price that everybody

          4  gets for the energy portion is the same in New York

          5  State, all right? So if the price yesterday was $90,

          6  I think it was, $92 for electricity in New York

          7  State, if a dollar of that was this fine, that would

          8  be included in that $90.

          9                 If I'm required to pay the fine,

         10  because on that last megawatt that was collected, I

         11  pay the fine, I get my $90 and I take one dollar and

         12  I pay the fine.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         14                 MR. DWORKIN: If I'm the brand new guy

         15  that's just on line, that's nice and clean, I still

         16  get the one dollar. I get the $90, too, and I don't

         17  have to pay the fine.

         18                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Let's just make sure

         19  it's crystal clear.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. Just,

         21  Arthur, if you could just state your name for the

         22  record.

         23                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Arthur Goldstein.

         24                 In the bidding process, that cleaner

         25  unit might have come in at --
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          2                 MR. DWORKIN: Oh, he bid lower, sure.

          3  Because of this reversed auction.

          4                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: So in the auction

          5  there might have been companies that bid $88, $89,

          6  because one company comes in at $92 because of all

          7  sorts of cost factors. Once you hit that 92, the

          8  price becomes 92 for the 88 or even 91, and they get

          9  the extra profit I guess.

         10                 MR. DWORKIN: And that cost gets

         11  passed on to the consumer.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Can't they

         13  take the fine out of the cost? Wouldn't that be a

         14  simple process?

         15                 MR. DWORKIN: Well, you've got a

         16  couple things going here. You've got generators,

         17  they're bidding in on a market basis, so whatever

         18  they want, they can bid in, whether they get

         19  accepted or not, it's based on economics.

         20                 Yes, I guess you could take it up

         21  with the ISO and say don't let those guys include

         22  that in their reference price, yes. But there are a

         23  lot of other things that are in that reference

         24  price. There are other, like knots allowances

         25  (phonetic) that are built into that as well. So,
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          2  you've heard enough of that, right?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No.

          4                 MR. DWORKIN: And, again, we're happy

          5  to sit down with your staff and go through this

          6  again in any level of detail. But I think that's one

          7  of my concerns whenever I see this stuff that

          8  there's unintended consequences in the market

          9  sometimes, that the economic might bring to the

         10  surface.

         11                 The other thing I want to talk about,

         12  and you heard the other generators talk about as

         13  well is the financial difficulties that we're going

         14  through.

         15                 I just bought a copy of a DOW Jones

         16  news release from yesterday, and it's about NRG, and

         17  basically it says that my boss doesn't have a job

         18  today. He's gone.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is that so?

         20                 MR. DWORKIN: Yes. Most of the people

         21  that work for them, our Pittsburgh office, has been

         22  closed. That's previously where I reported into. I

         23  was one of the lucky guys that didn't wind up

         24  subject to this layoff yesterday.

         25                 But our company, as well as most of

                                                            161

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  the generators in New York State are in dire

          3  financial problems, we're headed toward Bankruptcy

          4  more likely than not, and our focus as a company

          5  right now is not on new generation or new

          6  development.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          8                 MR. DWORKIN: You can see that in this

          9  article, that the guys that are running the company

         10  now are saying, hey, we've got to concentrate and

         11  focus on running what we've got as profitably as we

         12  can, as best we can, and that I just think goes a

         13  little bit to where I heard I think Con Ed actually

         14  say, I hate to say I agree with Con Ed, but some of

         15  the testimony I did, but it's just a different

         16  economic circumstances now. There aren't all these

         17  people that are incentivized with a lot of money to

         18  go out there and build new generation. I think it's

         19  going to be a good while before you see enough

         20  generation come into New York City that you can even

         21  start to think about retire in the old. So, I think

         22  you'll just have to put some thought to that as you

         23  put this bill forward, kind of the logic and the

         24  basis behind some of what the expectation was that's

         25  not there anymore.
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          2                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: One additional

          3  comment.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          5                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: I think it was last

          6  summer when one of Marc's bosses was on the phone

          7  with me and Mark almost every day asking me to call

          8  DEP to see when we're going to get our permit for a

          9  79.9 megawatt unit in Councilman Vallone's district.

         10  It would be state-of-the-art clean, the company was

         11  absolutely gung-ho. You know, I wasn't doing enough

         12  for them to help them moving forward in the

         13  permitting process. And then reality set in, shortly

         14  after they got the permit the company said we can't

         15  afford it. And they'd love to do it, they can't do

         16  it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Couldn't get the

         18  financing, or?

         19                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: The economics don't

         20  work. They don't have the money. They don't have the

         21  financing, as in the case of numerous plants,

         22  proposed plants around town.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And not to put

         24  words in your mouth, but it would be your testimony

         25  that the type of legislation wouldn't help that
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          2  economic equation, and make financing more

          3  attractive, and wouldn't, wouldn't do that? I'll let

          4  you say it for yourself, if you want to say it.

          5                 MR. DWORKIN: I mean, from what I can

          6  see, from what I've determined here is it's going to

          7  increase the cost to generate electricity, which

          8  doesn't help us finance. Doesn't make our plant more

          9  competitive in the market.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 1:50 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 14th day of February 2003.
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